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Financial Highlights

Group Sales £m

2000 2001

5,724

6,942

Group Operating 
Profit £m*

2000 2001

750
807

Earnings per 
Share pence*

2000 2001

16.9
17.0

* Unless otherwise stated, operating profit and
earnings per share are stated before goodwill
amortisation and exceptional items, up to
page 32 of this report.

Sales by Region
£m %

1 Europe 3,620 52
2 The Americas 2,927 42
3 Africa, Asia, 

Australasia 395 6

Total Sales £6,942m

Employees by Region
Number %

1 Europe 33,000 59
2 The Americas 19,000 34
3 Africa, Asia, 

Australasia 4,000 7

Total Employees 56,000

R&D Expenditure by Division
£m %

1 Communications 541 81
2 Systems 70 10
3 Capital 58 9

Total R&D Expenditure £669m

32



I am pleased to report a solid financial performance for our Company during the year to March

2001. Trading conditions in our core markets have clearly become more difficult, and this has been

reflected in stock market valuations. These factors are driving some significant changes to the

structure of our customers’ markets. However, I am confident that our continuing efforts to focus

more of our resources on communications have placed us in a stronger market position. 

The fundamental drivers of sustained long-term growth in our industry remain unchanged –

communications traffic continues to grow rapidly and mobile communications are becoming

increasingly popular. These trends continue to fuel demand for the broadband network solutions

that Marconi delivers to its customers. In addition, we have actively responded to the changes

taking place in our markets through our internal re-organisation to become more customer-focused.

Management succession

As we announced at the Company’s last Annual General Meeting, an orderly management

succession plan is in place. At this year’s AGM in July, I shall retire both as Chairman and from the

Board, Lord Simpson will become Chairman and John Mayo will become Chief Executive. In April

of this year, Steve Hare joined the Board as Chief Financial Officer, to succeed John Mayo. Steve

was previously Senior Vice President, Finance of Marconi.

Board changes

I also made a commitment at last year’s AGM to strengthen the Board of our Company, with the

addition of at least one new non-executive Director. In April, Derek Bonham joined the Board,

taking the number of non-executive Directors to seven. Derek brings a wealth of experience as

Chairman of Cadbury Schweppes plc and Imperial Tobacco Group plc. He has been appointed

senior independent non-executive and will chair the Board’s Remuneration Committee.

In the first quarter of the current financial year, the Board established a Technology Advisory

Committee. This Committee will be chaired by Sir Alan Rudge, a non-executive Director, and will

include external appointees with relevant technical knowledge and strategic perspective. The

objective of the Committee is to inform and enhance the direction of the Company’s

developments and in particular, its Research and Development programmes. 

The speed of changes that have taken place both at Marconi and within the industry have placed

increasing demands on the non-executive Directors of the Company. I would like to express my

gratitude for their diligence and patience, and their dedication to the success of Marconi.

US Listing

On 17 October 2000, Marconi was listed on Nasdaq, the US technology-based stock market.

This was in keeping with the high-technology nature of our business but, more importantly, gives

Marconi greater visibility in the US with current and prospective employees, investors

and customers.

Marconi’s future

I have worked with the people of Marconi from its inception, and I continue to be impressed by

their commitment to the strategy of becoming the world’s best communications company, and by

their energy in implementing this plan. For my own part, I will leave the Company with a lasting

sense of excitement about the future of the business, and with confidence in the long-term

outlook for our Company.

Sir Roger Hurn

Chairman

Chairman’s Statement 

“I am confident that our continuing
efforts to focus more of our resources
on communications have placed us in
a stronger market position.”
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Chief Executive’s Review 

Trading performance

Marconi reported a solid financial performance despite more difficult trading conditions than 

in the previous year. The Group has delivered sales growth of more than 21 per cent on a

reported basis and 15 per cent on a comparable basis with last year. Perhaps even more

significant is the fact that this growth was driven by Communications, where we reported sales

growth of 38 per cent and 23 per cent on a comparable basis with last year.

We have maintained operating margins on a like-for-like basis in a very competitive market place

and after major investments aimed at producing value in future years. Here again,

Communications underpinned the Group performance with a 35 per cent increase in like-for-like

operating profits. Continued operating improvements within our Systems business enabled them

to deliver a very creditable operating profit performance, despite like-for-like sales growth being

constrained by difficult trading conditions in their major markets in the United States. 

“Despite the more difficult trading environment
we encountered during the year, Marconi
continued to grow its business successfully.
Communications continued to be the key
driver of our growth, supporting our strategy
to focus more resources on this sector.”

76

Industry conditions

We experienced deteriorating trading conditions in the final quarter of the financial year and we

fully expect that these difficult conditions will continue throughout the first half of the current year.

Although, until recently, this trend has been most apparent in the US, there are signs emerging

that the market in Europe is now also slowing. The scarcity of capital to finance network

development has particularly affected new operators and Competitive Local Exchange Carriers

(CLECs) and this has led to a slowdown in orders for communications equipment across the

whole industry. We see this as a natural pause for an industry that has consistently spent capital

at a higher rate than revenue growth over a number of years.

Having said this, the level of demand among the end customers of communications network

operators remains high as Internet usage and mobile access continue to grow very rapidly and

the appetite for broadband communications services remains essentially unsatisfied. 



9

Chief Executive’s Review continued
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scheduled for completion this calendar year. This change will involve the transfer of 2,900

employees and a significant element of our components inventory to Jabil Circuit, our

selected outsourced manufacturing partner, as well as the deployment within Marconi of

state-of-the-art new product introduction processes.

As we announced in April, we will also reduce our workforce by a further 3,000 in the

current year. This action is not simply a response to the difficult trading conditions but,

more importantly, is a major element of our plans to realign our skills base to a more

customer focused and value adding business model. While we will reduce our employee

numbers in administrative and support functions, we will continue to recruit more people

into important research, engineering and customer account management roles.

In addition to these actions, we have also announced a major reorganisation of our sales

activities and the introduction of a standardised set of information systems. These

programmes are at the heart of our planned transformation to an integrated modern

company and John Mayo describes their scope in greater detail on pages 30 and 31.

The Group remains focused on developing long-term value for shareholders. Despite

market conditions we have continued to invest in new business developments. These

have included Marconi Optical Components; Ipsaris, our UK national network business;

and our mobile communications business. Similarly, we take the view that it is not

effective to tie our Research and Development investment to the business cycle, and we

continue to invest in R&D programmes that will generate high rates of return. Once again,

Group R&D spending increased at a significantly faster rate than sales as we spent

almost £200 million more on R&D than in the previous year. The vast majority of this

investment has been focused on strategic next generation product development.

Outlook

We do not see an upturn in market conditions until the end of this calendar year, and the

first half of the current financial year is unlikely to show an improvement over the first half

of last year. However, with the increasing underlying demand by businesses and

consumers for communications services and the absence of significant over-capacity in

European communications networks, we anticipate the market will recover around the

end of this calendar year. We expect European incumbent and established operators to

lead this trend. This gives us confidence that the Group can achieve growth for the full

year, supported by our relative strength supplying those operators and the growing

momentum in our new product pipeline. In addition, our new customer focused

organisation will provide a solid platform for future success as market conditions improve. 

Lord Simpson

Chief Executive

Against this background we expect to see a period of instability characterised by the early

stages of industry consolidation amongst our customers. On one hand, we expect that the

weakest players will find the challenge of securing funding insuperable while on the other hand,

the stronger players – incumbent and established operators – will develop new applications and

services, new video-based content and new business models. This process will, in time,

generate the revenue increases necessary for operators’ network capital expenditures to

recover, and will herald a shift back towards network development based on Quality of Service.

Analysis of projected capital expenditure suggests that optical networks will continue to grow

faster than other segments.

As our customers’ markets change, customer mix will be an increasingly important

differentiating factor for Marconi and other equipment providers. More than 80 per cent of our

sales were to incumbent operators and established operators. In addition, the shift back towards

high Quality of Service broadband networks complements our core competence in deploying

carrier-class communications networks and our leadership in optical networking. 

Although market visibility is very much reduced at present we expect to see renewed growth by

the end of this calendar year. 

In summary, we recognise, and are not immune from, the current short-term circumstances in

our industry. However, we remain confident about medium-term prospects for the industry and

about our relative positioning in the global communications industry.

Competitive position

We will take advantage of the slow-down to position ourselves to compete even more effectively

in this new market environment. We will push through our announced major reorganisation

plans; we will develop our relationships with the emerging winners amongst our customers; we

will leverage our strength in optical networks and grow our US position; we will maintain our

policy of investment for the long-term; and we will redress the current imbalance in our working

capital position. These actions will build the platform for even greater Marconi success when

market conditions improve.

We are taking action to re-shape Marconi into a fully modernised integrated company. In

October 2000, we announced plans to outsource our lower value manufacturing operations.

These plans are now well advanced and these operations will be transferred over two stages

“Although market visibility is very much
reduced at present we expect to see
renewed growth by the end of this
calendar year.”



Cash Flow

An operating cash ouflow of £106 million was

reported in the period, compared with an inflow

of £610 million the previous year. This was

mainly the result of a temporary increase in

working capital due to higher than normal

inventory of optical components that we built up

in advance of scheduled new product

deployments and to support increased volumes

of existing high-capacity SDH products. 

Group management is confident of the quality

of the remaining inventory, which is in support

of future scheduled deliveries. Normal

provisioning has been charged and we do not

anticipate the need for any further significant

write-downs. As we reduce the levels of

working capital during the current year, we

expect the Group to improve cash generation. 

Interest

Group interest costs increased to £154 million

from £107 million. This increase was a function of

the Group’s increased net debt position of

£3,167 million (2000 £2,145 million) at the year end.

Taxation

Taxation on profit on ordinary activities, before

goodwill amortisation and exceptional items,

was £188 million. This represents an effective

tax rate of approximately 28.5 per cent

(2000 30 per cent).

Capital Expenditure

Net capital expenditure rose to £561 million, or

8 per cent of sales, from £265 million. This

increase is largely a function of the growth of

the business, but almost one-third of the total

is dedicated to investments in our start-up

businesses, Ipsaris (formerly Fibreway) and

Marconi Optical Components. Over the current

financial year, we expect capital expenditure

as a percentage of sales to decrease as we

outsource a greater proportion of our

manufacturing capacity.

Financial Management

During the year, the Group diversified its

sources of funding and lengthened the maturity

structure of its debt through the issuance of

$1.8 billion of bonds in the US public debt

market (Yankee bonds), comprising

$900 million of 10-year bonds, and

$900 million of 30-year bonds. Group financial

flexibility remained strong, with over 5 billion

of undrawn syndicated facilities with our core

banks. Since year end, the Group’s credit

ratings have been re-confirmed by Moody’s

and Standard and Poor’s as A3 and BBB+,

respectively.

The Group maintained a policy of growth whilst

limiting vendor finance exposure to customers

below $500 million, which markedly

distinguishes Marconi from peer group

Financial Review

The Group remains committed to this level 

of R&D investment in proportion to sales to

support future organic sales growth. Whilst 

we look to reduce administrative and other

support costs, we continue to invest in long-

term R&D programmes which will generate

high rates of return.

Goodwill Amortisation

The total goodwill amortisation charge for the

Group fell to £673 million from £765 million.

The biggest movement was the reduction in the

amount of In-Process Research and

Development that was written-off. £32 million

was written-off in the year to March 2001,

relating to the acquisitions of MSI and

Mariposa, while the previous year’s £277 million

In-Process Research and Development

write-off related to the acquisitions of Fore

Systems and Reltec Corporation.

Exceptional Items

Exceptional items charged to profit totalled

£50 million. Of the total, £32 million relates to

ongoing voluntary redundancy schemes and

other one-off restructuring costs. £38 million

represents the difference between the reduced

market valuations of fixed asset investments,

and gains on disposals including part of our

Alstom holding, Avery Berkel and Woods Air

Movement. In addition, a gain of £20 million

arose during the year following final settlement

of the separation of the defence business.

Earnings Per Share

Earnings per share before goodwill amortisation

and exceptional items increased to 17.0 pence

from 16.9 pence as interest charges grew,

reflecting our increased level of debt. After

goodwill amortisation and exceptional items,

the loss per share was 9.8 pence (2000 earnings

of 19.4 pence).

Financial Performance
The Group has continued to focus on the global communications equipment industry and

has integrated a number of important acquisitions during the year. As was the case last

year, this means there has been significant growth in “headline” numbers. The Group has

also shown strong growth in underlying like-for-like sales, which compare performance to

the prior year as if the current Group had included the same businesses in both years.

Group management consider like-for-like a more relevant measure of performance in most

circumstances, and these numbers are therefore described in this review.

Sales

Group sales rose to £6,942 million from

£5,724 million, representing an increase of

21 per cent on a reported basis or 15 per cent

on a like-for-like basis with last year. 

Operating Profit

Operating profit before goodwill amortisation

and exceptional items increased to

£807 million from £750 million, an increase of

8 per cent on a reported basis and 20 per cent

on a like-for-like basis.

Operating profit after goodwill amortisation 

and exceptional items was £102 million

(2000 operating loss of £122 million).

Profit Margins

Gross margins increased from 35.7 per cent

to 36.6 per cent. This increase was mainly

a result of our cost reduction programmes,

which allow us to offer price reductions to

customers as we increase sales volumes. In

turn, this enables the Group to achieve modest

gross margin enhancements, which remains an

important part of our business model. 

On a like-for-like basis, operating margins have

improved to 11.6 per cent from 11.3 per cent.

The decrease from 13.1 per cent on a reported

basis was due to the dilutive effect of our

acquisition of Bosch Public Networks. This

business was successfully integrated during

the year and is now recording profits.

Research and Development

Research and Development investment

increased to £669 million (2000 £471 million) 

or 9.6 per cent of Group sales (2000 8.2 per

cent). 
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Sales by Division
£m %

1 Communications 4,665 67
2 Systems 1,481 21
3 Capital 835 12
4 Other (39)

Total Sales £6,942m Total Operating Profit £807m

Operating Profit by Division
£m %

1 Communications 592 73
2 Systems 179 22
3 Capital 44 5
4 Other (8)

Group R&D Expenditure £m

2000 2001

471

669

Post Balance Sheet Event

Marconi has two syndicated loan facilities, one

for 5.8 billion and the second for 2.5 billion.

On 22 March 2001 1.3 billion of the first facility

expired and on 2 June 2001 the whole of the

second facility also expired. Marconi has put in

place a 364 day credit facility with a 1 year term

out option in an amount of 3 billion to replace

these facilities.

companies. Marconi Finance plc was

established during the year to provide

financing arrangements that are attractive to

our customers. As at 31 March 2001, Marconi’s

overall level of vendor finance committed to

customers was £170 million, of which

£135 million had been drawn. Full details of

Treasury Policies and Risk Management are

given in Group Financial Management on pages

44 and 45.



Creating Europe's most advanced 

all-optical network

BT’s challenge: to massively increase

bandwidth without interrupting customer

service or disrupting management processes.

BT’s solution: SmartPhotoniX optical

networking from Marconi. In a five-year

landmark agreement, we will supplement BT’s

existing Synchronous Digital Hierarchy (SDH)

infrastructure with the latest Dense Wavelength

Division Multiplexing (DWDM) technology.

Marconi’s solution will give BT the most

advanced broadband network at the lowest

capital and operating costs.

“Marconi’s extensive product range,
its ability to provide solutions and its
service and support will be vital to
BT as we move forward together.”

Paul Reynolds, CEO of BT Wholesale

A forty-fold increase in bandwidth for

Telecom Italia Wireline

Telecom Italia Wireline selected Marconi Dense

Wavelength Division Multiplexing (DWDM)

SmartPhotoniX solutions to upgrade their

optical network. The agreement is worth

400 billion ITL over two years, with an option

to extend in the third year. The carrier also

chose Marconi to supply 700,000 Digital

Subscriber Lines (DSL) to meet the growing

demand for bandwidth over conventional

copper lines. Marconi will supply, install and

test equipment, as well as provide relevant

management systems.

The Marconi SmartPhotoniX solution increases

Telecom Italia’s available bandwidth by 40

times and our new Access Hub DSL solution

will help them to deliver that bandwidth to

revenue-generating customers.

The broadband switching connection

behind Sprint ION®

A favourite of US business customers, the

Sprint ION®, Integrated On-Demand Network

combines local, long distance and Internet

access over a single connection, on a single

bill from a single provider. And Sprint has

chosen Marconi ASX-4000 switches to

enhance this converged service.

The Marconi solution enables Sprint to offer

ION® services to a wider range of customers

with full voice quality, faster provisioning and

superb network resilience. The new Sprint

ION® infrastructure will also power Sprint

Business DSL, a high-performance service for

small businesses. 

Bandwidth in days, not weeks

BT Ignite offers powerful broadband network

transport services, giving high speed access

to communications, content and applications

to carriers, service providers, and businesses.

BT Ignite Nederland chose Marconi to supply,

build and operate a new 'managed

wavelength service'. Provided to the largest

corporate customers and universities, the

service offers (with a national coverage) direct

channels at an unprecedented 10 gigabits per

second. Communications speed is matched

by provisioning speed.

The Marconi solution enables BT Ignite to offer

an exceptionally responsive service, providing

high bit-rate connections quickly, adding an

extra wavelength in days rather than weeks.

Operational Review: Communications Networks
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Operational Highlights

This year saw the first major network

deployments of our DWDM portfolio. Twenty

customers took delivery of 2.5 gigabits per

second and 10 gigabits per second DWDM

from Marconi during the year. 

In March 2001, Marconi was awarded the

contract to provide the photonics share of

BT’s core transmission network upgrade.

Winning this contract against strong

international competition demonstrated to the

market that Marconi SmartPhotoniX is a

world-beating solution. We also won new

optical networking contracts with Telecom

Italia, BT Ignite, Fibernet, Telecom Malaysia,

Telecom Iceland and EdisonTel. 

In addition, we launched our optical

networking portfolio for the North American

market in October 2000, supported by our

sales and support operation established in

Dallas, Texas. This development positions us

to compete strongly in this important market.

In August 2000, our Access Systems

business celebrated a major milestone in

optical access, deploying more than 3 million

lines of fiber-to-the-curb capacity and

extending the power of optics to homes

across North America.

In addition, we acquired Mariposa Technology,

a provider of integrated access devices that 

enable operators to offer bundled voice, video

and data services.

Our Broadband Switching business is

increasingly concentrating its commercial and

technical resources in supporting operators

who need carrier-class networks. We have

continued to expand our sales in this market

segment through contracts with Sprint, Cable

& Wireless, and a number of network

providers in the Asia-Pacific region.

Furthermore, as broadband communications

are increasingly deployed by enterprise

customers as part of our solutions offering, we

see growing opportunities for these

technologies in this segment.

Sales £m

2000 2001

2,535

3,318

Operational Review: Communications Networks continued

Operational Performance

Communications Networks is made up of

three principal businesses: Optical Networks,

Access Systems and Broadband Switching.

Sales of this group of businesses increased

41 per cent (22 per cent like-for-like) to

£3,207 million, underpinned by strong growth

in Optical Networks and Access Systems.

Operating profit increased to £461 million from

£381 million, representing growth of

21 per cent or 37 per cent like-for-like. 

Optical Networks achieved 40 per cent

like-for-like sales growth. This was driven

mainly by the strong UK demand for

10 gigabits per second SDH systems

broadening throughout Europe and into Asia-

Pacific. In the year, we shipped more than

1,800 10 gigabits per second systems to 28

customers in the UK, Europe and Asia-Pacific. 

Our Access Systems portfolio reported strong

like-for-like growth of 22 per cent, accelerating

from 19 per cent in the first half. Software and

Outside Plant and Power showed strong

growth, as did our Wireless Access business.

Marconi Germany, formerly Bosch Public

Networks, increased wireless access sales in

its domestic market primarily as a result of a

new contract with VIAG Interkom, as well as

expanding international sales with new

contracts from Vodafone (UK) and

Retevision (Spain). 

Sales of our Broadband Switching business

increased to £427 million, growth of 1 per cent

on a reported basis, but a decline of

16 per cent like-for-like. 

Other small Communications Networks

businesses contributed a further £111 million to

sales and a further £4 million to operating profit.

Through its Optical Networks, Access Systems
and Broadband Switching businesses,
Communications Networks designs and
integrates communications network solutions
for public operators, service providers and
enterprises with private networks. 

Operating Profit £m

2000 2001

416
465

1514

Sales by Business
£m %

1 Optical Networks
& Transmission 1,408 43

2 Access Systems 1,372 41
3 Broadband Switching 427 13
4 Other 111 3



On-track from London to Glasgow 

at 140 mph

Trains don’t just run on rails, they also run

on information. And it takes high-speed

communication to keep trains running at

140 mph. That’s why Railtrack chose 

Marconi to design, install and maintain

communications for Britain’s West Coast 

Main Line.

The Marconi solution provides Railtrack with a

resilient fibre optic network and GSM-R mobile

communications to relay data about track

conditions, weather, speed limits and safety

conditions as well as data on the position of

other trains on the track. All of this will be

available to the train driver via on-board

computers and communication systems. 

On the move in Dallas-Fort Worth

Upgrading a freeway transportation network,

start by deploying the right data network.

When the Texas Department of Transportation

needed electronic traffic monitoring and

control, Marconi provided the solution. We

responded with a total solution, designing and

implementing a complete ATM network

infrastructure. Video streams from network-

controlled cameras feed real-time images to

the traffic control centre, where managers can

electronically post message boards along the

highways to help drivers avoid snarls and jams. 

The result of this Marconi solution? Better

utilisation of highways – and fewer commuters

stuck in traffic. 

On building the future of healthcare

When North Kansas City Hospital built a

323,000 square foot extension, they selected

Marconi to plan and build the extension to their

data network. Working with Marconi Services

partner, Alexander Open Systems, we

performed project management, network

design, staging, configuration, installation,

testing, certification and documentation. The

resulting fibre optic network features Marconi

ASX-4000 switches to manage the broadband

needs of medicine in the future.

This Marconi solution enables doctors at

different locations to share radiology images

and supports remote dial-up, physician office

connectivity and home healthcare delivery –

with plenty of capacity to support future

telemedicine, teleradiology, telecardiology and

new biomedical devices. 

“Working in partnership with EMAAR we 
will create a truly intelligent city. Marconi’s
e-enabled solutions will differentiate this
project, transforming lifestyles and bringing
real value to our customer’s customers.”

Neil Sutcliffe, CEO Marconi Communications Services

Operational Review: Communications Services

Marconi helps redefine the modern city

What is an intelligent city? A place where

citizens connect directly to healthcare,

government, audio/video entertainment, leisure

activities, shopping and the workplace. Now

under construction, Dubai Marina will be the

world’s first intelligent city. The developer

selected Marconi to design, build and operate

the network that makes it happen. The total

value is expected to be US$550 million over

the next ten years. 

The Marconi solution will meet EMAAR’s vision

and provide them with a property asset which

through networked applications and new

services is forecast to be worth a multiple of 

its cost due to the benefits this solution will

deliver to the city’s businesses and residents.
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How to leapfrog established competitors

Marconi’s wireless Digital Multipoint System

(DMS) enables VIAG Interkom to leapfrog

established competitors. Rather than wire a

whole neighbourhood to serve one new

customer, VIAG Interkom can deploy wireless

bandwidth directly to the customer’s site. 

This Marconi solution shortens payback times

on capital investment – and speeds response

to customer demand. 

“We needed to move fast. Marconi was
the only company that could offer us
the right technology and immediate
availability in network build quantities.” 

Werner Fraas, Managing Director, VIAG Interkom

Delivering smart software for Sprint PCS

Success in communications takes more than

the muscle of bandwidth; it takes the brains of

advanced software. Sprint, the fastest-growing

PCS carrier in the United States has a

$50 million contract with Marconi for Ceos

wireless mediation software and Planet

network planning software. Sprint PCS also

uses Marconi Geodata software, which plans

radio propagation based on actual terrain data.

Marconi’s solution enables Sprint PCS to

protect revenue streams by distributing

customer call records across business

applications and optimise their network

planning to specific technology and

budgetary requirements.

Staying ahead of exploding mobile demand

Keeping up with the mobile boom means

optimising your infrastructure. In Germany,

Marconi is helping D2 Vodafone do just that

with Digital Multipoint System (DMS)

technology. Marconi will supply the carrier with

a 26-gigahertz point-to-multipoint solution for

deployment throughout the mobile network. 

This solution provides D2 Vodafone with

exceptional spectrum efficiency. And because

it’s based on Marconi’s Asynchronous Transfer

Mode (ATM) technology, DMS offers an easy

migration path to third generation (3G) mobile

Internet services. 

Helping Vodafone prepare for the 3G world

Third generation mobile Internet services will

require the conversion of hundreds of mobile

switching centres already occupied by today’s

technology. Each centre currently features

thousands of copper interfaces and kilometres

of cabling that come together in resource-

hungry Manual Distribution Frames. For

Vodafone, Marconi will replace the manual

frames with SDH optical systems that free up

floor space, reduce cable clutter and simplify

network planning.

Marconi’s software-managed solution

enhances flexibility and disaster recovery,

all while paving the way for future

revenue streams. 

Operational Review: Mobile Communications
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Communications Services offers “Plan, Build and
Operate” services covering consultancy, network
design, planning and optimisation, turnkey
network building and systems integration as
well as total network support and maintenance
and innovative e-business applications.

Operational Review: Communications Services

Operational Performance

Sales of Mobile Communications rose to

£331 million, an increase of 12 per cent on a

reported basis, or 15 per cent like-for-like. This

was mainly a result of increased sales of

strategic and private mobile radio products. 

Mobile’s profitability declined to £15 million

from £26 million, as we have continued to fund

the development of our UMTS capability from

the operating profit of this business.

Operational Review: Mobile Communications

Operational Highlights

During the year, we have continued to build our

position and capability to serve mobile

operators globally, and to evaluate the

business opportunities in the market for third

generation (3G) telephony.

Through our acquisition of MSI, we have

enhanced our ability to win and execute Plan,

Build and Operate contracts for wireless

telecommunications operators worldwide.

Our strategic partnership with LG Electronics

for the joint development and marketing of 3G

mobile networks systems better positions us to

provide mobile operators with cost-effective

broadband solutions for high performance

Internet-enabled services.

Finally, in partnership with leading wireless

innovator, ArrayComm, we are now combining

our high-bandwidth, high quality

communications networks with ArrayComm’s

smart antenna technology to develop superior

3G wireless infrastructure solutions.

Our Mobile Communications business designs,
develops and integrates leading-edge
communications and information technologies
into wireless communications systems for
personal, professional and secure uses. 

Operational Highlights

Marconi Communications Services pursued a

strategy of controlled growth, marked by a

number of important strategic developments.

- Acquisition of APT, a European-based

provider of wireless infrastructure services.

- Establishment of Ultramast, our 50/50 joint

venture with Railtrack, offering deployment of

broadband wireless networks to UK

operators seeking to expand network

coverage.

- Acquisition and integration of SMS, bringing

an extensive capability in IT outsourcing,

application hosting and content

management.

In addition, Marconi Communications Services

won a number of important new customer

contracts during the year, details of which can

be found on pages 16 and 17.

We entered the Managed Services market with

contracts for BT Ignite Nederland and Jersey

Telecom and the fast growing Application

Service Provider (ASP) hosting market with

a $100 million contract over four years with

US-based Media.Net.

Our success in this market segment was

recognised in December 2000, when industry

analysis firm, Stratecast Partners, ranked

Marconi in the top three professional services

organisations in the global communications

vendor community.

Operational Performance

Sales of Communications Services increased

87 per cent (34 per cent like-for-like) to

£1,016 million, based on continuing demand

for network planning and building services

from European incumbent operators, and a

strong performance from the services portion

of Marconi Germany.

Communications Services increased operating

profit, before goodwill amortisation and

exceptional items, to £112 million, representing

growth of 53 per cent on a reported basis or

59 per cent like-for-like. This strong

performance reflects the leadership position

we have achieved in this area and our

successful migration to higher value-added

“Plan, Build and Operate” services.

Sales £m

2000 2001

543

1,016

Operating Profit £m

2000 2001

73

112

Sales £m

2000 2001

295
331

Operating Profit £m

2000 2001

26

15
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Operational Review: Systems

'Dial-a-Coke' solution goes online

Imagine calling a data centre to get a complete

rundown of vending machine stock, cash and

fault information – so machines stay clean,

filled and working. Imagine vending machines

smart enough to take orders from a customer’s

mobile phone – and charge the sale to the

phone bill. That’s just part of the promise of the

Online Coke machine. The concept has

entered a new phase as 'Dial-a-Coke' pilots

begin with The Coca-Cola Company Europe

and Coca-Cola Amatil in Australia.

A Marconi solution that enables Coca-Cola to

provide greater customer convenience, to

significantly reduce the cost of operating

vending machines and to build greater

knowledge of their customers.

Keeping tabs on duty-free shopping

World Duty Free Europe was expanding –

and expansion created problems. Their large

and growing base of duty-free airport shops

encompassed multiple systems, multiple

currencies and multiple headaches and the

need to manage Euro compliance which also

loomed as an unsolved problem.

The Marconi solution for World Duty Free

removed the headaches through new

integrated systems, faultless connectivity,

data integration, and comprehensive training

and support.

Not just pumping gas, generating sales

David Miller sought to turn an ordinary

convenience operation into a fast-paced

superstore. Thanks to Marconi Commerce

Systems, he’s succeeded. Pay-at-the-pump

dispensers with interactive screens now

advertise in-store specials, helping to make 

his ARCO store number one in Arizona. 

Not satisfied, Miller recently added on-line

merchandising to his forecourt operations, 

with dynamic Internet content. 

This Marconi solution has helped Arizona Oil

drive demand for convenience store products

and attract new customers to the forecourt.

“I was convinced that if we built the best, we
would get the most business. The way I see
it, if you don't make dust, you eat dust.”

David Miller, Arizona Oil Partners, LLC
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Operational Performance

Sales in Capital decreased by 17 per cent to

£835 million following the disposals of Avery

Berkel, the Easams facilities management

operations and Woods Air Movement, and the

impact of difficult trading conditions in our

white goods and service station equipment

businesses.

The marked decrease in operating profits in

Capital to £44 million was due to the disposals,

combined with major investments in our high

growth start-ups, Ipsaris (formerly Fibreway)

and Marconi Optical Components.

Operational Highlights

In line with its strategy to become a preferred

provider of advanced broadband services,

Ipsaris expanded its UK fibre optic

communications network to four countries in

Northern Europe. Developing an operator

capability is not core to our communications

solutions strategy and we continue to explore

options for the future separation of Ipsaris.

Marconi Optical Components (MOC) was

officially launched in March 2001 with the

release of a range of leading-edge photonic

components for high performance optical

networks. These include high power tunable

lasers and the breakthrough Terabit Engine, a

complete photonic subsystem on a single chip.

Combining over 3,000 years of collective

experience in optical technology from Marconi

specialists based in Caswell (UK) and design

and manufacturing capabilities from Marconi

Applied Technologies, MOC will sell its new

products to third party manufacturers and to

Marconi’s own optical networking business to

enhance its customer solutions.

Operational Review: Capital

Capital comprises two business streams –
non-core mature businesses managed for
value rather than growth, and Emerging
Technology businesses developed and
funded to maximise future value creation.

Operational Review: Systems continued

Systems has focused on developing new
applications and services to exploit the rapidly
growing e-business opportunities in the fields
of retailing, data and medical imaging.

Operational Performance

Systems sales rose 9 per cent on a reported

basis and 2 per cent like-for-like. Sixty-nine per

cent of this division’s sales came from the US,

where difficult markets have constrained

customer spending and the growth of our

businesses. Despite this, both Medical

Systems and Commerce Systems achieved

growth on a like-for-like basis, with Data

Systems showing a small like-for-like decline

due to delays in customer spending in the US.

Systems increased the proportion of high-

margin software and technology solutions

within its product mix, including strong growth

in operating profits at Medical Systems and the

retail automation business within Commerce

Systems. Overall, the division showed a

creditable increase in profit, before goodwill

amortisation and exceptional items, of 24 per

cent on a reported basis or 15 per cent on a

like-for-like basis, to £179 million.

Operational Highlights

Commerce Systems has made progress in

expanding into the retail automation market,

particularly through the successful integration

of two strategic acquisitions and the launch

of a software product suite targeted at the

petroleum and convenience store sectors.

Going forward, Marconi is focusing this activity

on the development of advanced electronic

solutions for the global retail industry.

Data Systems introduced new technology and

business models to provide customers with

real-time information based solutions,

particularly in e-logistics. Marconi InfoChain,

a new business focused on supply chain

solutions, began commercial operation.

Medical Systems strengthened its competitive

position in the Computed Tomography (CT)

and Magnetic Resonance Imaging (MRI)

markets. Its advanced multi-slice MX8000

scanner, the fastest and most accurate CT

imaging system in the world, has achieved

strong market acceptance. 

In line with the Group’s strategy to focus on

communications, the Group has announced

that it is in discussions concerning the future of

its Medical Systems business.

Sales £m

2000 2001

1,356
1,481

Operating Profit £m

2000 2001

144

179

Sales £m

2000 2001

1,005

835

Operating Profit £m

2000 2001

111

44
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Sales by Business
£m %

1 Medical Systems 1,112 75
2 Data Systems 239 16
3 Commerce Systems 130 9

Operating Profit by Business
£m %

1 Medical Systems 105 59
2 Data Systems 54 30
3 Commerce Systems 20 11



IEEE programme: In partnership with the

Institute of Electrical and Electronic

Engineers, Marconi now provides IEEE

membership and on-line access to IEEE

services to qualified Marconi engineers

anywhere in the world. 

Accredited training: Our training centres

in Coventry and Liverpool have now been

accredited by nto tele.com – the UK’s

National Training Organisation. The centres

already meet ISO 9001, National Diploma

and Institute of Management standards. 

Last year the centres delivered 32,000

delegate days of training to Marconi

employees and customers.

Forging strong links with the future

Marconi’s commitment to education at all

levels has led us to create close links with

local schools and colleges offering the latest

technologies and the skills and time of

employees to help promote best practice in

learning. 

INSPIRE: Pittsburgh employees launched this

mentoring program for schoolgirls interested

in pursuing careers in technology. Another

Marconi initiative – “Networks in Action” –

introduces students to network equipment.

Young Foresight: As part of this UK

Government initiative, employees from

Marconi’s New Century Park campus and

teachers from Coventry’s design and

technical colleges are acting as business

mentors to local pupils.

e-learning in South Africa: South Africans will

shortly be acquiring new IT skills through an

e-learning project pioneered by Marconi with

the provincial governments of Gauteng, the

North West, and the Free States. Inspired

by the South African drive to reform their

technical education system, Marconi plans

to work with telecommunications industry

partners to design a distance education

programme and telecomms delivery system

which will eventually extend across the

country.

Participating in our communities

Our work in local education is matched by

Marconi participation in local charities and

initiatives. 

United Way: As part of a region-wide effort

that gathered over US$40 million for charities,

Marconi’s headquarters in Pittsburgh was

honoured as a “Top 12 Outstanding 2000

Campaign Contributor” by the United Way

in Western Pennsylvania.

Save the Children: Five Marconi employees

are raising money for this fund by sailing on

the Marconi-sponsored yacht, Team SpirIT in

the BT Global Challenge. This 30,000-mile

yacht race is billed as the world’s toughest.

Youth at Risk: In the UK, Marconi is providing

time and financial resources to 35 employee-

volunteers. The initiative is tackling youth

disaffection and providing opportunities to

change lives.

Marconi People

Marconi operates in a dynamic industry
where people really are the asset that can
make a difference. We depend on people
who are talented, committed and decisive. 

That’s why we’re dedicated to attracting the

best, rewarding their efforts and providing

opportunities for them to grow.

Living The Marconi Way

We unite long-term employees, new hires

and employees who have joined through

acquisition in the shared set of values we call

The Marconi Way. It’s about empowering our

people to make a difference; it’s about

learning at high velocity, challenging

conventional wisdom and focusing on our

customers’ success. 

Our global Breakthrough programme – a

series of one-day workshops – provides the

opportunity for every one of our employees

to learn more about applying The Marconi

Way values and practices in their daily work

in order to improve their performance and

bring real business benefits. 

The Marconi Way is driving a spirit of

openness and sharing throughout our

Company – ensuring accessibility at all

levels, supporting team working and a

“one company” culture. 

Our employees are encouraged to give their

views and contribute to the development of

our business, by taking part in our Global

Employee Survey and by interacting with our

company-wide Intranet, momentum – which

not only provides daily news but a focus for

feedback, networking and sharing

knowledge. 

Learning for the future

Marconi is dedicated to education throughout

the Group – equipping its people with the

skills and knowledge to work and grow in a

high technology, high growth environment.

Major initiatives include: 

The Marconi Masters: This three-year Master

of Science course in International Technology

Management – led by Carnegie Mellon

University in the US and Warwick University

in Europe – combines professional, technical

and business modules to give students a

thorough grounding in communications

technologies and management.

The Marconi Academy: Launched last year in

partnership with the universities of Nottingham

and Warwick, this innovative and challenging

programme is aimed at talented young people

who are attracted by an approach to higher

education that allows them to learn and to

see the direct application of their learning to

a leading-edge technology business.

Joining the company as young employees,

the young people spend their first three years

in the Academy – their time being divided

seamlessly between the university and the

company. Two thirds of their time is spent in

Marconi acquiring knowledge of our business

and our technologies through a structured

programme of work placements. The balance

of their time is spent acquiring the necessary

academic foundation at the university. After

three years the students are awarded an

accredited B Eng. degree in Electronics and

Communication Technologies.
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Technology Review
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Fast and agile, our Virtual Technology
Centre helps us stay alert to outside
developments yet focused on
research that will yield successful
new products.

Marconi has made the transition from a

conglomerate to a focused communications

company – a position that demands

technology leadership. Research and

Development supports our market positions

today, and is our roadmap for success in the

future. We have expanded R&D investment to

£669 million in the year, an increase of almost

£200 million. 

The Virtual Technology Centre

Whilst this investment is massive, it is also

carefully targeted. Instead of one, large,

bureaucratic technology development

organisation, we have created a Virtual

Technology Centre. In addition to Marconi

facilities, this embraces strategic alliances

with entrepreneurial technology companies

and research partnerships with premier

universities. 

A framework of themes governs our

technology investments and focuses the

activities of each facility. Chief among these

themes is optical networking.

The Virtual Technology Centre provides

distinct benefits:

Scope Because no one organisation has a

monopoly on good ideas, we are constantly

learning from leading technology companies

and universities.

Velocity Small, separate research facilities are

free to aggressively pursue specific areas of

expertise for faster results.

Focus Marconi R&D encompasses 11 distinct

areas of focus, each organised around

specific customer needs. 

Flexibility Marconi research is located

wherever the appropriate skills are. We

maintain major facilities at Cambridge

University (advanced communications), and

Warwick (photonics manufacture) in the UK;

Pisa, Italy (long-haul optics and 3G wireless);

and Pittsburgh, USA (backbone switching). 

We manage our technology initiatives in

virtual teams across the Group, and we 

use real-option based financial analysis to

re-confirm that precious resources go toward

the most productive ends.

Tangible results

In this way, our R&D actions have already led

to products that are the world's first, world's

fastest, and world's most flexible of their 

type. Accomplishments in 2001 included

technological milestones.

Marconi Optical Components started as a

research project. Now it is a business that

promises fibre communications at 40 gigabits

per second – four times faster than the

current state-of-the-art, which is also from

Marconi.

Ultra Long-Haul Dense Wavelength Division

Multiplexing (DWDM) multiplies the length

over which DWDM signals can travel without

expensive regeneration. Marconi’s new

technology increases the span from

100 kilometres to an amazing 3000 kilometres

– ideal for transcontinental and transoceanic

cables.

Fibre to the Home Passive Optical Networking

(FTTH PON) FTTH promises a much lower

cost fibre-based broadband access

infrastructure allowing incremental 

roll-out without expensive powered 

and air-conditioned street cabinets.

Generic Multi-Protocol Label Switching

(G-MPLS) This allows network operators to

dynamically and transparently control their

transport and data infrastructure.

Tetra mobile radio offers secure, broadband

communication for mobile emergency

services – a major advantage for public 

health and safety. 

Into the future

Additional research still in the Marconi

pipeline addresses urgent customer

requirements and prominent opportunities. 

These include dynamic photonic switching,

integration of internet protocols and

photonics systems, broadband fibre solutions

for business and consumers, and next-

generation wireless solutions that will drive

the new age of broadband services. These

technologies promise rich dividends in the

years to come.



Fully integrated company

Going forward, we will manage Marconi as a fully integrated company, not as a conglomerate.

Whilst a conglomerate simply reports and controls against financial targets, an integrated group

also has consistent personnel policies and practices, integrated sales and marketing

programmes, fully co-ordinated R&D and integrated supply chain management. The

implementation of a single group-wide information technology platform to support these new

systems and processes is an important part of our reorganisation. This will enable us to further

reduce operating costs and speed up business processes as well as introducing web-enabled

interfaces with our customers and suppliers.

As we re-organise, we are also shifting the balance of skills within the Group, streamlining

administration and support functions and recruiting additional skilled engineers and scientists

as well as customer account personnel.

Looking Forward

Our vision is simple – we want Marconi to be the best communications company in the world –

not the biggest, but the best, as voted by our customers; the communications solutions provider

they can rely on when they face a particularly difficult challenge.

Since 1997, we have made the transition from slow-growth conglomerate to fast-growth

technology company. Through organic growth and a series of acquisitions we have developed

world-class communications capabilities and we have built an international customer base

across more than 100 countries. From April of this year, we have embarked on the last step of

this managed evolution to re-shape Marconi into a fully modernised integrated company focused

on communications.

Our core competencies combine the development of new communications hardware and

software; the deployment of high quality of service, broadband, always on communications

solutions; and a deep understanding of our customers’ business drivers. 

Through our re-organisation we aim to bring these unique capabilities to the forefront. This will

allow us to offer our customers complete communications solutions which will transform their

business models, by optimising their existing networks, reducing their capital requirements for

new networks, lowering their operating costs or building intelligence into the network to enable

them to add new revenue-generating services and increase customer retention.

Customer-focused organisation

We are now operating as one global company with three divisions to bring Marconi solutions to

Networks customers, Wireless customers and Enterprise customers. 

Our Networks Division serves telecommunications companies like BT, Telecom Italia and Bell

South. Wireless serves telecommunications companies which rely on wireless communications

networks like Vodafone, Verizon and Sprint PCS. Enterprise serves customers without a

telecommunications licence, for example, government departments, public utilities, private

companies and large corporations, including Coca Cola, Exxon, AOL Time Warner and

Delta Airlines.

“Our core competencies combine the
development of new communications
hardware and software; the deployment 
of high quality of service, broadband, 
always on communications solutions; 
and a deep understanding of our 
customers’ business drivers.”

We expect the total cost of these Group-wide projects to be in the range of £400 million and to

produce cost benefits in excess of £200 million per annum by March 2003. We plan to reinvest

£100 million per annum of these savings to raise Marconi brand awareness and support future

sales growth.

Our new divisional organisation is up and running, management is in place and we are already

selling solutions. By the end of the first half of the current financial year, we expect to see initial

orders that will stimulate our second half performance and pick up into the following year.

To achieve our vision, our people need to see Marconi as the best place to develop their talents;

our customers to see us as their communications solutions provider of choice; our suppliers to

be eager to claim us as a flagship customer; our competitors to respect us; and our

shareholders to benefit from our success and to stay with us over the long-term.

John Mayo

Deputy Chief Executive 3130
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S t a t u t o ry and Financial Contents D i re c t o r s

Sir Roger Hurn C h a i rm a n
Aged 62. Appointed to the GEC Board in 1998 and subsequently to the Marc o n i
B o a rd in October 1999, Sir Roger was formerly Chairman of Smiths Industries
PLC. He is Chairman of Prudential plc, a non-executive director of Cazenove
G roup PLC and Imperial Chemical Industries PLC, Joint Deputy Chairman of
Glaxo SmithKline plc and Chairman of the Court of Governors at the Henley
Management College.

L o rd Simpson Chief Executive
Aged 58. Appointed to the GEC Board in 1996 and subsequently to the Marc o n i
B o a rd in October 1999, Lord Simpson is a non-executive director of Alstom
S.A., Bank of Scotland and Nestlé S.A. He was Chairman and Chief Executive of
Rover Group and subsequently Deputy Chief Executive of British Aerospace Plc
and Chief Executive of Lucas Industries Plc.

D C Bonham Non-executive Dire c t o r
Aged 57. Appointed to the Board in April 2001, Mr Bonham will succeed
S i r Alan Rudge as Chairman of the Remuneration Committee and senior
independent non-executive Dire c t o r. He is currently a Director of Glaxo
SmithKline plc and Chairman of Cadbury Schweppes plc, Fieldens Plc and
Imperial Tobacco Group plc and was Chief Executive and Deputy Chairm a n
o f Hanson plc until 1997. He is a past member of the Financial Accounting
S t a n d a rds Advisory Council (USA) and served on the Accounting Standard s
Committee (UK).

Sir William Castell Non-executive Dire c t o r
Aged 54. Appointed to the GEC Board in 1997 and subsequently to the Marc o n i
B o a rd in October 1999, Sir William has been Chief Executive of Nycomed
Amersham plc (formerly Amersham International plc) since 1990, having
p reviously been Commercial Director on the board of Wellcome plc. Sir Wi l l i a m
is Chairman of The Prince’s Tru s t .

M J Donovan Chief Sales Off i c e r
Aged 48. Appointed to the Board in 2000, Mr Donovan was Chief Executive
O fficer of Marconi Systems and Marconi Capital and in addition to continuing
i n the latter role has been appointed Chief Sales Off i c e r. He p reviously held a
number of Executive management positions in the Rover Group (1976 to 1991),
Vickers plc (1991 to 1994) and British Aerospace Plc (1994 to 1998).
M r Donovan became Chief Executive of GEC’s Industrial Electronics Group 
in 1998 and is based in the US.

The Rt Hon The Baroness Dunn DBE Non-executive Dire c t o r
Aged 61. Appointed to the GEC Board in 1997 and subsequently to the Marc o n i
B o a rd in October 1999, Baroness Dunn is an Executive Director of John Swire &
Sons Ltd and a non-executive Deputy Chairman of HSBC Holdings plc; she was
f o rmerly Senior Member of the Hong Kong Executive Council and Legislative
C o u n c i l .

S Hare Chief Financial Off i c e r
Aged 40. Appointed to the Board in April 2001, Mr Hare, a chart e re d
accountant, joined GEC in 1989 and has held a number of financial positions
i n the Gro u p ’s subsidiaries including seven years with GPT, GEC’s
telecommunications joint venture with Siemens. He subsequently became
Finance Director of the Industrial Division and in 1998 was appointed Chief
Operating Officer of Marconi Communications Networks. In 1999, he was
appointed Chief Financial Officer of Marconi Communications Networks, based
i n the US before re t u rning to the UK in 2000 as Senior Vice President, Finance
for Marconi plc.

J C Mayo CBE Deputy Chief Executive
Aged 45. Appointed to the GEC Board in 1997 and subsequently to the Marc o n i
B o a rd in October 1999, Mr Mayo was Finance Director until April 2001, when he
was appointed Deputy Chief Executive. He was formerly Finance Director of
Zeneca Group PLC and prior to that, a Director of S.G. Wa r b u rg & Co Ltd.
Mr Mayo is a non-executive Director of Schlumberger Limited.

R I Meakin Chief Human Resources Off i c e r
Aged 51. Appointed to the GEC Board in 1998 and subsequently to the Marc o n i
B o a rd in October 1999, Mr Meakin has responsibility for the Gro u p ’s human
re s o u rces activities. He is on the board of Young Enterprise, is a member of the
Steering Board at the Radiocommunications Agency and is Chairman of the DTI
and DƒEE’s Education and Training Export Group. Mr Meakin was form e r l y
Personnel Director of British Aerospace Plc.

M W J Part o n Chief Executive Off i c e r, Marconi Networks
Aged 46. Appointed to the Board in 2000, Mr Parton was Chief Executive Off i c e r
of Marconi Communications until April 2001, when he was appointed Chief
Executive Off i c e r, Marconi Networks. He has held a number of finance
appointments in ICL plc (1977 to 1980), GEC-Marconi Ltd (1980 to 1986) and
STC Telecommunications Ltd (1986 to 1991). He joined GEC in 1991 as Finance
D i rector of GPT and was appointed Managing Director of GPT’s Public
Networks Group in 1995, Managing Director of GEC’s Industrial Group in 1997,
and Chief Executive Officer of Marconi Communications at the time of its
f o rmation in July 1998.

Sir Alan Rudge CBE Non-executive Dire c t o r
Aged 63. Appointed to the GEC Board in 1997 and subsequently to the Marc o n i
B o a rd in October 1999, Sir Alan is Chairman of the Remuneration Committee
and upon becoming Chairman of the Company’s Technology Advisory
Committee will be succeeded by Mr Bonham. Sir Alan was formerly Deputy
Chief Executive of British Telecommunications plc and is currently Chief
Executive of MSI Cellular Investment Holdings BV. He is Chairman of ERA
Technology Ltd and a non-executive director of Great Universal Stores Plc.
S i r Alan is a Fellow of the Royal Academy of Engineering and the Royal Society
and a Past President of the Institution of Electrical Engineers.

Hon Raymond G H Seitz Non-executive Dire c t o r
Aged 60. Mr Seitz, who was Ambassador of the United States to the Court of
S tJ a m e s ’s from 1991 to 1994 and is Vice Chairman of Lehman Bro t h e r s
I n t e rnational (Europe), was appointed to the GEC Board in 1994 and
subsequently to the Marconi Board in October 1999. He is also a non-executive
d i rector of British Airways plc, Cable and Wi reless plc, Rio Tinto plc, Te l e g r a p h
G roup plc, Chairman of Authoriszor, Inc. and a former Trustee of the National
G a l l e ry and the Royal Academy.

N J Stapleton Non-executive Dire c t o r
Aged 54. Appointed to the GEC Board in 1997 and subsequently to the Marc o n i
B o a rd in October 1999, Mr Stapleton is Chairman of the Audit Committee. He is
C h a i rman of Ve ronis, Suhler International Ltd. He was previously Chairman of
Reed International plc and Co-Chief Executive of Reed Elsevier plc.
M r Stapleton is a Director of AXA UK plc, the London Stock Exchange 
and The Royal Opera House Trust and a member of the Financial Report i n g
Review Panel.

S e c re t a ry and Registered Off i c e
N C Port e r, One Bruton Street, London W1J 6AQ
Telephone: +44 (0)20 7493 8484
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The Committee, which normally meets at least six times a year, is
appointed by the Board and its membership comprises the executive
D i rectors and senior executives. The quorum re q u i res the presence of at
least two executive Directors. The Committee’s main functions include
a p p roval of the Gro u p ’s business plan and budget, the review of
p e rf o rmance against plan, the Gro u p ’s strategies in areas including
t e c h n o l o g y, people, information technology, corporate communications
and change programmes, prior to submission to the Board for its
a p p roval. This Committee also deals with day-to-day matters of a ro u t i n e
n a t u re .

The Secre t a ry of the Company is Secre t a ry to all Board Committees.

2 Directors’ Remuneration
In accordance with the re q u i rements of the Combined Code, the Board
has approved the terms of re f e rence of the Remuneration Committee, as
with all Board Committees. The Report to Shareholders by the Board on
D i rectors’ Remuneration, which can be found on pages 38 to 41, sets out
the Company’s remuneration policy, pro c e d u res and the remuneration of
individual Dire c t o r s .

3 Relations with Share h o l d e r s
The Company gives communication with shareholders a high priority. The
announcement of interim and final results provides opportunities for the
Company to answer questions from institutional investors covering a
b road range of issues and, in addition, there is regular dialogue with
institutional shareholders to ensure a mutual understanding of objectives.

The Company’s website (www. m a rconi.com) provides shareholders with
i n f o rmation about the Company including the annual and interim re p o rt s ,
recent announcements, investor presentations and share price
i n f o rmation. Shareholders are able to put questions to the Company
t h rough its website.

The Company aims to deal expeditiously with all enquiries from individual
s h a reholders on a wide range of matters. Individual shareholders also
have the opportunity of attending the Annual General Meeting to put
questions to the Chairman and the chairmen of Board Committees.
D i rectors also meet informally with shareholders before and after the
meeting. The Company keeps under review ways in which it can
communicate more effectively with its shareholders throughout the year
as well as at the Annual General Meeting. The mounting of an exhibition
at the Annual General Meeting, covering a wide range of the Company’s
p roducts and technology, has been introduced in recent years.

It has been the Company’s practice to send the Notice of the Annual
General Meeting and related papers to shareholders at least 20 working
days before the meeting and to propose separate resolutions on each
substantially separate issue. The Company indicates the level of pro x y
votes lodged in respect of each resolution proposed at its Annual General
Meeting following each vote on a show of hands. In the event of a poll
being called the result is announced through the London Stock
E x c h a n g e .

4 Accountability and Audit
Financial Report i n g
The Board includes a detailed review of the perf o rmance and financial
position of each business on pages 12 to 25. Reading these alongside
the Chairm a n ’s Statement on pages 4 and 5, the Chief Executive’s
Review on pages 6 to 9, the Financial Review on pages 10 and 11 and
the Directors’ Report on pages 36 and 37, the Board seeks to present a
balanced and understandable assessment of the Company’s position
and pro g re s s .

I n t e rnal Contro l
The Directors’ Statement on Internal Control can be found on page 46.

Audit Committee and Auditors
The Audit Committee meets at least three times a year with the Chief
Financial Officer and other executive Directors, attending by invitation.
The Committee oversees the monitoring of the adequacy of the
C o m p a n y ’s internal controls, accounting policies and financial re p o rt i n g
and provides a forum through which the Company’s external audit and
finance functions re p o rt to the non-executive Directors. The duties of the
Audit Committee also include keeping under review the scope and
results of the audit and its cost effectiveness. The Committee also
receives re p o rts from the external and internal auditors on a regular basis.

Compliance Statement
The Listing Rules of the United Kingdom Listing Authority re q u i re the
B o a rd to re p o rt on compliance with the provisions contained in Section 1
of the Combined Code throughout the accounting period. Thro u g h o u t
the year ended 31 March 2001, the Company has been in compliance
with the provisions set out in Section 1 of the Combined Code.

Corporate Governance
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The Board of Marconi continues to support the Principles of Good
G o v e rnance set out in Section 1 of the Combined Code. A summary of
the Company’s system of applying the principles and the extent to which
the provisions in Section 1 have been complied with, are set out in this
re p o rt to shareholders. Section 1 of the Combined Code establishes
1 4 Principles of Good Governance, which are split into four are a s :

1 The Board
The Company is controlled through the Board of Directors which
comprises the Chairman, six executive Directors and six non-executive
D i rectors who, with their diff e rent backgrounds, bring with them a wide
range of expertise and experience to the Company. The Board considers
all of the non-executive Directors to be independent as they are
independent of the Company’s executive management and free from any
business or other relationship which could materially interf e re with the
e x e rcise of their independent judgement. There is a clear division of
responsibility between the Chairman and Chief Executive with no single
individual having unfettered powers of decision. The Chairman is
responsible for running the Board and ensures that all Directors re c e i v e
s u fficient relevant information on financial, business and corporate
matters to enable them to participate effectively in Board decisions. The
Chief Executive’s primary role is the co-ordination of the Company’s
businesses and the development and implementation of strategy. The
Combined Code recommends the appointment of a senior independent
non-executive Dire c t o r, and Sir Alan Rudge has been appointed by the
B o a rd to fulfil that role; Sir Alan will be succeeded by Mr D C Bonham in
July 2001.

The Board ordinarily meets six times a year but holds additional meetings
when circumstances re q u i re. During the year to 31 M a rch 2001, the
B o a rd met on six occasions. Between meetings, the Chief Executive up-
dates the non-executive Directors on current matters and there is
f requent contact to pro g ress the affairs of the Company. Bro a d l y,
attendance at Board and Committee meetings was approximately 90 per
cent during the year. The non-executive Directors meet with the
C h a i rman and Chief Executive at least twice a year to discuss a wide
range of matters affecting the Company and have the opportunity to
a rrange additional meetings to consider and discuss with executive
D i rectors the Company’s business strategy and other matters.

D i rectors receive appropriate training on appointment and then as
n e c e s s a ry. They attend an induction programme which aims to pro v i d e
an understanding of the Company, its strategy, stru c t u re, geographical
s p read of operations, financial position, the markets in which it operates,
its products and technologies, its people and, where appropriate, legal
responsibilities as a dire c t o r. The Directors have access to the advice and
s e rvices of the Secre t a ry and there is an approved pro c e d u re by which all
D i rectors can obtain independent professional advice at the Company’s
expense in furtherance of their duties, if re q u i red; this pro c e d u re is
reviewed periodically.

The Board, which has re s e rved certain specific matters to itself, is
responsible for overall Group strategy, acquisition and divestment policy,
a p p roval of major capital expenditure projects, consideration of

significant financial matters and it reviews the financial perf o rmance and
strategic direction of the operating businesses.

The names and biographical details of all the Directors are set out on
page 33.

B o a rd Committees
The Board has established a number of committees with defined term s
of re f e rence, which are reviewed periodically, and receives re p o rts of their
p roceedings. The principal committees, their membership and a brief
description of their terms of re f e rence, as of 16 May 2001, are as follows:

Audit Committee
N J Stapleton (Chairm a n ) The Rt Hon The Baroness Dunn
D C Bonham Sir Alan Rudge
Sir William Castell Hon Raymond G H Seitz

The Committee reviews the Company’s financial statements and re p o rt s ,
its financial and corporate controls and accounting policies. All the
members of the Committee are independent non-executive Dire c t o r s .
The Company’s internal and external auditors attend meetings and have
the opportunity to raise matters or concerns in the absence of executive
D i re c t o r s .

Nomination Committee
Sir Roger Hurn (Chairm a n ) Sir Alan Rudge
D C Bonham Hon Raymond G H Seitz
Sir William Castell N J Stapleton
The Rt Hon The Baroness Dunn

The Committee makes recommendations to the Board on all pro p o s e d
new appointments of Directors. The Chairman and the non-executive
D i rectors who are members of this Committee are independent.

Remuneration Committee
Sir Alan Rudge (Chairm a n ) The Rt Hon The Baroness Dunn
D C Bonham Hon Raymond G H Seitz
Sir William Castell N J Stapleton

The Remuneration Committee determines, on behalf of the Board, the
b road framework for executive remuneration including the re m u n e r a t i o n
of executive Directors. All members of the Committee are independent
non-executive Dire c t o r s .

Executive Committee
L o rd Simpson (Chairm a n ) J I Gord o n
J C Mayo S Hare
J S Bro o k s R I Meakin
T Butler A F Olivari
M J Donovan M W J Part o n
G W Doy D H Reid
J R Fry e r N D Sutcliff e
G W Goluska J N Vi l j o e n
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M a rconi plc is a holding company and, as distinct from the Marc o n i
G roup, has no revenue and no trade creditors, as in the prior year. It is
t h e re f o re not possible to provide statistics for the Company as re q u i re d
by the Companies Act.

E m p l o y e e s
A re p o rt on people in the Marconi Group can be found on pages 26
a n d2 7 .

Full and fair consideration is given to applications for employment fro m
people with disabilities having re g a rd to their aptitudes and abilities;
special arrangements are made to support the continued employment of
those who become disabled. Wherever practical, access, facilities and
training programmes are made available allowing people with disabilities
to participate at work to the best of their ability.

Individual employees and their re p resentatives are kept informed of
c u rrent business issues through briefing groups, newspapers, training
seminars and professional networks as well as through more form a l
consultative pro c e d u re s .

During the year, the following options have been granted under the
C o m p a n y ’s Share Option Plans: 

a to 3,584 employees in respect of 2,615,646 ord i n a ry shares of
5 pence each at a subscription price of 538 pence per share under
5 year savings contracts and to 3,870 employees in respect of
5,442,554 ord i n a ry shares of 5 pence each at a subscription price of
571.5 pence per share under 3 year savings contracts under the
M a rconi UK Sharesave Plan;

b to 1,494 Italian employees in respect of 653,817 ord i n a ry shares of
5 pence each at a subscription price of 737 pence per share under
5 year savings contracts and to 1,106 Italian employees in respect of
781,114 ord i n a ry shares of 5 pence each at a subscription price of
737 pence per share under 3 year savings contracts under the
M a rconi International Sharesave Plan;

c to 4,860 employees in respect of 31,037,294 ord i n a ry shares of
5 pence each at subscription prices ranging between 670 pence and
947 pence per share under the Marconi 1999 Stock Option Plan;

d to 4,476 employees in respect of 23,312,379 phantom units at option
prices ranging between 501.5 pence and 1250 pence per share
under the Marconi Phantom Option Scheme; and

e under the North American Employee Stock Purchase Plan, 906,645
ADRs (comprising 1,813,290 ord i n a ry shares of 5 pence each) were
p u rchased by 2,662 participants at the end of the first Offering Period
( 1 7 October 2000 to 31 December 2000) at a purchase price of
US$17.47 per ADR, and in the second Offering Period (1 January
2001 to 30 June 2001), 4,269 employees have elected to purc h a s e
ADRs using their savings totalling US$7,734,585. The purc h a s e
p r i c e is 85 per cent of the lower of the market value of an ADR at
t h e beginning or end of the Offering Period and, accord i n g l y, the
p u rchase price in respect of the second Offering Period will not be
d e t e rmined until after 30 June 2001.

Details of the options outstanding at 31 March 2001, and details of
s h a res allotted pursuant to the exercise of options during the year ended
31 March 2001, are given in Notes 9 and 19 to the accounts.

E n e rg y, Environment and Health & S a f e t y
A re p o rt on energ y, environment and health & safety can be found under
Social Responsibility on page 42.

Charitable Donations
Charitable donations made by Marconi Group companies during the 
year amounted to £827,000 (2000 £603,000) of which £414,000
( 2 0 0 0 £269,000) was made to charities in the United Kingdom.
T h e s e amounts exclude operating units’ support for charitable purposes
and for educational establishments.

Political Donations
No donations for political purposes were made during the year (2000 £ n i l ) .

The Directors do not anticipate making any donations for political
purposes in the foreseeable future and there f o re will not be putting a
resolution to shareholders at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting
seeking their authority to do so.

Business at the Annual General Meeting
The Annual General Meeting will take place on 18 July 2001 at The
Queen Elizabeth II Conference Centre, Broad Sanctuary, We s t m i n s t e r,
London SW1P 3EE. Details of the business to be put to shareholders at
the forthcoming Annual General Meeting can be found in the letter fro m
the Chairman to shareholders which incorporates the Notice of Meeting
and which accompanies this annual re p o rt and accounts.

By Order of the Board
M a rconi plc

N C Port e r
S e c re t a ry
One Bruton Street, London W1J 6AQ
16 May 2001

Directors’ Report
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P rofits and Dividends
The loss for the year to 31 March 2001 on ord i n a ry activities attributable
to the shareholders amounted to £271 million.

The Directors recommend a final dividend of 3.45 pence per ord i n a ry
s h a re which, together with the interim dividend of 1.9 pence already paid,
makes a total of 5.35 pence per ord i n a ry share at a cost of £148 m i l l i o n .
Subject to the approval of the shareholders in the Annual General
Meeting, the final dividend will be paid on 3 August 2001 to the
s h a reholders re g i s t e red at the close of business on 22 June 2001.

Review of the Gro u p
An analysis of results, net assets, turnover and operating profit before
goodwill amortisation and exceptional items for the Company, its
subsidiaries and its share of joint ventures and associates is shown in
Note 1 to the accounts on pages 54 and 55. A commentary on the
activities of the Group and likely future prospects is given in the Chief
E x e c u t i v e ’s Review on pages 6 to 9. A review of the Gro u p ’s Researc h
and Development activities can be found in the Technology Review on
pages 28 and 29.

The Company acts as a holding company; its subsidiaries and
associated companies are principally engaged in the provision of
communications equipment and services together with associated
s u p p o rt applications. Further details of the principal subsidiaries, joint
v e n t u res and associates are shown on page 76.

Since 31 March 2001, the Group has been re o rganised into thre e
c u s t o m e r-facing divisions, Networks, Enterprise and Wi reless. Furt h e r
details can be found on pages 30 and 31.

S h a re Capital
In addition to the increases in share capital during the year arising fro m
the allotment of shares in respect of the exercise of options under the
C o m p a n y ’s share option plans, the following allotments of ord i n a ry
s h a res of 5 pence each (“Marconi shares”) took place during the year in
relation to the acquisition of companies by the Group for which such
s h a res formed part or all of the consideration:

a on 15 June 2000, 21,960,808 Marconi shares were allotted to the
s h a reholders of Metapath Software International, Inc.;

b on 30 June 2000, 6,975,136 Marconi shares were allotted to the
s h a reholders of Systems Management Specialists, Inc. and a furt h e r
1,026,065 were allotted on 11 January 2001;

c on 13 July 2000, 285,715 Marconi shares were allotted to the
s h a reholders of Davies Industrial Communications Limited;

d on 28 July 2000, 1,697,031 Marconi shares were allotted to the
s h a reholders of Albany Partnership Limited; and

e on 19 October 2000, 17,668,650 Marconi shares were allotted to the
s h a reholders of Mariposa Te c h n o l o g y, Inc.

S t ru c t u re of the Gro u p
Changes in the stru c t u re of the Group during the year ended 31 Marc h
2001, other than those of a minor nature, were as follows:

a the assets of The Software Works! were acquired in April 2000;
b the remaining 30 per cent interest not already owned by the Group in

M a rconi Commerce Systems Latin America s.a. was acquired in
A p r i l2 0 0 0 ;

c I n t e rvest s.a. was acquired in April 2000;
d the Av e ry Berkel Group was sold to We i g h - Tronix in June 2000;

e Metapath Software International, Inc. was acquired in June 2000;
f Systems Management Specialists, Inc. was acquired in June 2000;
g Davies Industrial Communications Limited was acquired in July 2000;
h Albany Partnership Limited was acquired in July 2000;
i a 15 per cent interest in netdecisions Holdings Limited was acquire d

in September 2000;
j Mariposa Te c h n o l o g y, Inc. was acquired in October 2000;
k the Gro u p ’s 50 per cent interest in Comstar was sold to Metro m e d i a

I n t e rnational Group, Inc. in December 2000;
l the Woods Air Movement Group was sold to Global Air Movement

Holdings Limited in January 2001 and as part of the same
transaction the Marconi Group acquired a 42 per cent interest in
Global Air Movement Holdings Limited; 

m a 9.74 per cent interest in ArrayComm, Incorporated was acquired in
F e b ru a ry 2001; and

n the Gro u p ’s interest in Alstom was reduced to 5.67 per cent in
F e b ru a ry 2001.

Since 31 March 2001, the following acquisitions have been made by
t h eG ro u p :
o H a rman Information Technology Pty Limited was acquired in

A p r i l2 0 0 1 ;
p Telit Networks S.p.A. and a 19.9 per cent interest in Telit Mobile

Te rminals S.p.A. were acquired in April 2001; 
q Ultramast Limited, a 50/50 joint venture with Railtrack, was

established in April 2001; and
r a 16.2 per cent interest in Enargeia Global Networks Limited was

a c q u i red in May 2 0 0 1 .

D i re c t o r s
The present members of the Board are shown on page 33, together with
their biographical details.

Mr D C Bonham and Mr S Hare were appointed to the Board on 10 April
2001 and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the
f o rthcoming Annual General Meeting.

All of the remaining Directors served throughout the year having been
re-appointed by shareholders at the Annual General Meeting held on
2 5 July 2000. Mr M W J Parton, Sir Alan Rudge, Hon Raymond G H S e i t z
and Lord Simpson re t i re by rotation and, being eligible, offer themselves
for re-election at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting. Sir Roger
H u rn re t i res as Chairman and from the Board at the conclusion of the
Annual General Meeting and will not be seeking re - e l e c t i o n .

In accordance with the recommendation of the Hampel Committee’s
Combined Code, Sir Alan Rudge is the senior independent non-executive
D i rector; it is intended that Sir Alan be succeeded by Mr D C Bonham at
the conclusion of the Annual General Meeting.

The Directors’ interests in the shares of the Company are shown in the
R e p o rt to Shareholders by the Board on Directors’ Remuneration on
pages 38 to 41.

Substantial Holders of Share Capital
So far as the Directors are aware, no person holds a substantial part of
the issued share capital of the Company.

Payment of Cre d i t o r s
It is the policy of the Marconi Group that operating subsidiaries agre e
with suppliers the best available terms taking account of quality, delivery,
price and period of settlement and to abide by those term s .
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Funded unapproved re t i rement benefit schemes (“FURBS”) are operated for five executive Directors – Lord Simpson, Mr J C Mayo, Mr M J Donovan,
M r R I Meakin and Mr M W J Parton. The Company makes contributions to each of the FURBS on the advice of the actuary; such contributions are
calculated to produce a capital sum targeted to provide benefits at the normal re t i rement age equivalent to a two thirds pension. The targeted benefit
takes into account the capital value of benefits arising from membership of the G.E.C. 1972 Plan and any relevant benefit in payment or otherw i s e
arising from previous employments. Lord Simpson’s normal re t i rement age is 60 (62 for the other four executive Directors) and his pensionable salary is
restricted to £562,432 but subject to increase at the same percentage amount (if any) as the annual rate of increase in basic salary – with a maximum
i n c rease of 4 per cent per annum. In the event of cessation of employment before normal re t i rement age, or at re t i rement age, each of the Directors is
entitled to the amount held in the FURBS established for him.

In accordance with the re q u i rements of the Listing Rules, the disclosures re q u i red for the year ended 31 March 2001 are set out below. The figures for
pensions shown below are the contributions paid by the Company in respect of each Dire c t o r.

The pension benefits earned by the Directors under the G.E.C. 1972 Plan are :
Length of I n c rease in Cost of pension benefits Accumulated total

p e n s i o n a b l e a c c rued pension a c c rued during the year a c c rued pension at
Name of s e rv i c e during the year net of member’s contributions 31 March 2001
D i re c t o r ( y e a r s ) £ 0 0 0 £ 0 0 0 £ 0 0 0

M J Donovan 2 2 5 4
J C Mayo 3 1 1 5
R I Meakin 4 1 9 7
M W J Parton 10 1 1 1 5
L o rd Simpson 4 1 7 7

Notes 
1 . The pension entitlement shown is that which would be paid annually at normal re t i rement age based on service to 31 March 2001.
2 . The increase in accrued pension during the year excludes any increase for inflation.
3 . The cost of pension benefits accrued during the year net of member’s contributions has been calculated on the basis of actuarial advice in accordance with Actuarial

Guidance Note GN11. The cost of pension benefits accrued during the year net of member’s contributions is a measure of the capital cost of providing future pension
payments and accordingly is a liability of the Gro u p ’s pension arrangements and not a sum paid or due to the Directors of the Company.

4 . Members of the plan have the option to make contributions to the Selected Benefit Scheme (an AVC scheme); neither the contributions nor the resulting benefits are
included in the above table.

5 . During the year, the Company made the following payments to the Trustee of the FURBS in respect of individual Directors: Lord Simpson £395,000 (2000 £308,000);
M r J C Mayo £374,000 (2000 £222,300); Mr M J Donovan £63,181 (2000 £52,846); Mr R I Meakin £290,000 (2000 £205,320); and Mr M W J Parton £147,000
(2000 £98,750). The contributions are determined each year based on actuarial advice to be sufficient to meet the obligations. Periodically the contributions are
reviewed by the actuary. 

6 . In the event of death in service, a lump sum of four times pensionable salary, plus additional benefits for a surviving spouse and/or children, inclusive of any death
benefits arising from the G.E.C. 1972 Plan, will be held on trust for the benefit of dependants of each of Lord Simpson, Mr J C Mayo, Mr M J Donovan, Mr R I Meakin
and Mr M W J Part o n .

D i rectors’ Remuneration
The remuneration paid or payable by Group companies to the Directors of the Company was:

Excluding pension P e n s i o n Gains made on the
c o n t r i b u t i o n s c o n t r i b u t i o n s e x e rcise of share options

S a l a ry & O t h e r 2001 2 0 0 0 2001 2 0 0 0 2001 2 0 0 0
F e e s b e n e f i t s B o n u s Total To t a l Total To t a l Total To t a l
£ 0 0 0 £ 0 0 0 £ 0 0 0 £000 £ 0 0 0 £000 £ 0 0 0 £000 £ 0 0 0

Sir Roger Hurn 2 6 9 2 6 – 295 2 6 6 – – – –
L o rd Simpson 7 0 2 3 0 0 – 1,002 1 , 2 2 8 425 3 5 2 – –
M J Donovan 3 8 8 8 7 – 475 1 4 5 * 156 2 1* – –
J C Mayo 5 4 3 2 9 0 – 883 9 4 2 408 2 5 9 – –
R I Meakin 2 9 7 2 2 2 – 519 5 7 9 314 2 2 6 – –
M W J Part o n 3 9 4 1 3 0 – 524 2 0 9 * 177 4 2* – –
Sir William Castell 3 3 – – 33 2 5 – – – –
The Rt Hon The Baroness Dunn 3 3 – – 33 2 5 – – – –
Sir Alan Rudge 4 0 – – 40 2 6 – – – –
Hon Raymond G H Seitz 3 3 – – 33 2 5 – – – –
N J Stapleton 4 0 – – 40 2 8 – – – –

2 , 7 7 2 1 , 0 5 5 – 3,827 3 , 5 2 0 1,480 9 0 0 – –

* These figures are in respect of the period from the date of appointment on 1 January 2000 to 31 M a rch 2000

N o t e s
1 . Other benefits include the payment of a non-pensionable earnings supplement in relation to the FURBS.
2 . Executive Directors receive certain taxable benefits, including an allowance under the Gro u p ’s car scheme. 
3 . The fees of non-executive Directors are determined by the Board; the basic fee paid during the year was £33,000 per annum with a further £7,000 per annum paid to

the Chairmen of the Audit Committee and the Remuneration Committee.
4 . Non-executive Directors do not have service contracts and do not participate in any of the incentive arrangements open to executive Directors or the Gro u p ’s

pension scheme.
5 . All Directors are reimbursed all necessary and reasonable expenses incurred in the perf o rmance of their duties.

Report to Shareholders by the Board on Directors’ Remuneration

Membership and Framework
The Remuneration Committee consists of wholly independent non-executive Directors. During the year, the members of the Committee were :
Sir Alan Rudge ( C h a i rm a n )
Sir William Castell
The Rt Hon The Baroness Dunn
Hon Raymond G H Seitz
N J Stapleton

D C Bonham was appointed to the Committee on 16 May 2001.

The Committee meets at least twice a year and makes decisions on behalf of the Board on the contracts of service and the remuneration packages of the
C h a i rman and executive Directors. The Committee also determines the framework within which executive remuneration is more generally determined and
in its review of executive Directors’ pay takes account of the remuneration of the other employees. The Committee has access to and takes pro f e s s i o n a l
advice from inside and outside Marconi. The Committee also takes the advice of the Chairman and Chief Executive, as appropriate, on the perf o rm a n c e
of the executive Directors. The fees of non-executive Directors are reviewed and determined by the Board .

Remuneration Policy
As a result of the significant changes to the Group over the past two years, the Committee keeps under review its employment and re m u n e r a t i o n
policies and their relevance to a global, high technology business. With approximately one third of the Company’s employees now based in the UK,
the Committee is conscious of the need to be familiar with and to take account of market practice in those countries in which it operates. 

The Committee’s principles, however, remain the same, namely:
● To ensure that executive remuneration policy and practices support business strategy, are competitive but also cost eff e c t i v e ;
● Remuneration packages must be tailored to attract, motivate and retain senior executives with the right skills and in accordance with their

contribution and perf o rm a n c e ;
● To align executives’ interests with those of shareholders through the establishment of competitive short and long-term incentive plans; and
● To ensure that remuneration packages are transparent and clearly explained.

Elements of Remuneration
Basic salary
Basic salaries for executive Directors are reviewed by the Remuneration Committee usually annually taking into account individual perf o rmance, skills
and market competitiveness. Basic salary is the only element of remuneration which is pensionable. The Committee reviews data from both intern a l
and external advisers and includes among its comparators large, global FTSE companies. It also assesses data derived from US high technology
companies when looking at executive Directors and other senior roles. Account is also taken of pay decisions across the Marconi Group. Perf o rm a n c e
assessment of executive Directors includes the perf o rmance of the Company and the achievement of individual objectives. No increases in basic
salaries are to be awarded to executive Directors in respect of the period commencing 1 July 2001, except in the case of pro m o t i o n .

S h o rt - t e rm incentive bonus
In the year ended 31 March 2001, executive Directors continued to be eligible to participate in a short - t e rm incentive plan. The plan pays bonuses
when an economic value added target (based on profitable growth) is met. In considering the payment of short - t e rm incentive bonuses, the Committee
also takes account of personal perf o rmance. No bonuses were awarded to executive Directors for the year ended 31 March 2001.

L o n g e r- t e rm incentives
The Company operates two main discre t i o n a ry plans – the 1999 Stock Option Plan and the Long-Te rm Incentive Plan – and the executive Dire c t o r s
p a rticipate in both plans. In addition, the Company also operates the Marconi UK Sharesave Plan and the Marconi Launch Share Plan in which the
executive Directors and all eligible employees may participate. Full details of options granted to executive Directors under these plans are set out on
page 40.

In summary, options may be granted under the 1999 Stock Option Plan for a period of up to ten years from 30 November 1999. Options granted
under the Plan become exercisable three years from the date of grant, provided the perf o rmance condition has been met, that is the perc e n t a g e
i n c rease in Marc o n i ’s earnings per share must be equal to or greater than the percentage increase in the Retail Prices Index plus 3 per cent per
annum. Thus, the shortest period over which the perf o rmance target can be satisfied is three financial years from the date of grant; if the target is not
satisfied after this period, it can be re-tested over the four financial years from the date of grant, and so on.

Under the Long-Te rm Incentive Plan, each year executive Directors can receive an award of notional shares of up to a maximum of 50 per cent of
basic salary, subject to satisfaction of demanding corporate perf o rmance over the three years from the date of the award. After three years from the
date of award, provided Marc o n i ’s total shareholder re t u rn is in the top 50 of the FTSE 100 index, participants may be granted a nil cost option to
a c q u i re Marconi shares. To the extent that the awards vest, the nil cost options will normally be exercisable in three tranches, one third immediately
upon vesting, one third on the first anniversary and one third on the second anniversary of the date of grant. On 10 July 2000, conditional awards of
notional shares were made to executive Directors as follows: Lord Simpson – 47,740; Mr J C Mayo – 36,723; Mr M J Donovan – 24,717; 
Mr R I Meakin – 20,197; and Mr M W J Parton – 26,483. The total number of awards of notional shares outstanding at 31 March 2001 were as follows:
L o rd Simpson – 89,910; Mr J C Mayo – 69,162; Mr M J Donovan – 80,107; Mr R I Meakin – 38,038; and Mr M W J Parton – 98,691.

R e t i rement Benefits
All executive Directors are members of the Gro u p ’s pension scheme, the G.E.C. 1972 Plan. Members contribute at the rate of 3 per cent of salary
subject to limits imposed by the Inland Revenue. Company contributions made during the year ended 31 M a rch 2001 amounted to 6.6 per cent of
s a l a ry, similarly restricted (2000 6.6 per cent).
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M a rconi UK Sharesave Plan
The Company operates an Inland Revenue approved share option scheme, the Marconi UK Sharesave Plan, which is open to all United Kingdom
employees, including executive Dire c t o r s .

M a rconi Launch Share Plan
On 30 November 1999, employees, including executive Directors, were granted the right to receive up to 1,000 Marconi shares at nil cost, pro v i d e d
that two conditions are met. Firstly, that the market value of a Marconi share doubles to £16.03 during the period 30 November 1999 to the fifth
a n n i v e r s a ry date, and secondly, that a participant normally remains in employment with the Marconi Group until the third anniversary date or, if later, at
the time that the first condition is met.

Policy on the Grant of Options
The Company’s policy on the granting of options is to make phased awards to key employees, based on business and personal perf o rmance. The
value of options granted normally ranges from 50 per cent to 150 per cent of basic salary per annum. Long-Te rm Incentive Plan (LTIP) awards may
also be made to senior employees based on personal perf o rmance. The maximum value of an LTIP award is 50 per cent of basic salary per annum.

Attracting and retaining highly skilled employees is key to Marc o n i ’s success. The rapid pace of change in the markets in which Marconi operates and
the fierce competition for scarce highly skilled people in a global labour market where demand exceeds supply means that the Group has to compete
v i g o rously with its competitors for the available skilled people.

In its re p o rt to shareholders last year, the Remuneration Committee pointed out that the Company’s approach to share option grants is not suff i c i e n t l y
competitive compared to that provided by its US competitors who currently are the major participants in most of the markets in which the Company
operates. The Committee has completed a detailed review of the Company’s approach to the granting of share options, and any proposals by the
B o a rd will be set out in the Chairm a n ’s letter to shareholders which accompanies this annual re p o rt and accounts.

S e rvice Contracts
The terms of employment of executive Directors as at 31 March 2001 are covered by either a service contract or letter of appointment from Marc o n i
Corporation plc (formerly GEC) and is subject to termination by either party giving not less than one year’s notice or, if not already terminated, on
L o rd Simpson reaching the age of 60 years and the remaining executive Directors on reaching the age of 62 years. It is intended that each of the
executive Directors will, in due course, enter into service contracts with the Company in substantially the same form as their existing service contracts,
which will in such circumstances be revoked. None of the Directors offering themselves for re-election at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting has
a service contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries with a notice period of more than one year.

When considering compensation payable in respect of termination of service contracts of executive Directors, the Committee would pay due re g a rd to
the need for mitigation.

Non-executive Directors serve for a period of three years, subject to renewal by agreement with the Board .

E x t e rnal Appointments
With the approval of the Chairman of the Company, executive Directors are permitted to hold appointments outside the Company. Any fees payable in
connection with such appointments are retained by Directors unless otherwise agre e d .

In preparing this re p o rt, the Remuneration Committee has given full consideration to the provisions set out in Schedule B to the Combined Code.

On behalf of the Board of 
M a rconi plc

Sir Alan Rudge
C h a i rman of the Remuneration Committee
16 May 2001

Report to Shareholders by the Board on Directors’ Remuneration continued

D i rectors’ Intere s t s
The Directors’ interests as defined by the Companies Act 1985 (which include trustee holdings and family interests incorporating holdings of minor
c h i l d ren) in shares of the Company and its subsidiaries are as follows:
( a ) O rd i n a ry share s As at 31 March 2001 As at 1 April 2000

B e n e f i c i a l B e n e f i c i a l

Sir William Castell 1 0 , 0 0 0 1 0 , 0 0 0
The Rt Hon The Baroness Dunn 1 0 , 0 0 0 1 0 , 0 0 0
M J Donovan 6 7 , 6 0 1 2 3 , 2 3 2
Sir Roger Hurn 3 1 , 4 5 0 1 1 , 4 5 0
J C Mayo 1 6 4 , 3 4 3 1 6 4 , 3 4 0
R I Meakin 2 0 , 3 0 3 1 1 , 0 5 0
M W J Part o n 2 8 , 8 6 0 2 8 , 7 7 6
Sir Alan Rudge 1 0 , 0 0 0 1 0 , 0 0 0
Hon Raymond G H Seitz 1 1 , 0 9 5 1 1 , 0 2 7
L o rd Simpson 1 3 3 , 6 0 6 1 0 6 , 6 0 6
N J Stapleton 1 3 , 5 7 2 1 3 , 5 7 2

None of the Directors held any non-beneficial interests in the shares of the Company during the year.

Since 31 March 2001, Mr M W J Parton acquired a beneficial interest in 8,497 ord i n a ry shares of 5 pence each on 2 April 2001.

T h e re have been no other changes in the interests of Directors between 31 March 2001 and 16 May 2001.

( b ) O p t i o n s
The following table shows the interests of Directors in options over ord i n a ry shares of 5 pence each in the Company:

At 1 April 2000 Granted in year At 31 March 2001 Exercisable

Average Average
exercise Exercise exercise

price price price
No. pence No. pence No. pence From To

Lord Simpson 1,407,159 311 – – 1,407,159 311 Dec 2000 Sep 2003
Lord Simpson 1,543,408             801.5* – – 1,543,408             801.5* Nov 2002 Nov 2009

M J Donovan 266,271 338 – – 266,271 338 Nov 1999 Oct 2008
M J Donovan 335,681 844* 198,048 787* 533,729 823* Nov 2002 Nov 2010

J C Mayo 1,146,303             331.5 – – 1,146,303             331.5 Dec 2000 Oct 2007
J C Mayo 1,739,279 730* 104,828 787* 1,844,107 733* Jul 2001 Nov 2010

R I Meakin 252,185             331.5 – – 252,185             331.5 Dec 2000 Oct 2007
R I Meakin 599,110 801* 57,274 787* 656,384 800* Jul 2001 Nov 2010

M W J Parton 340,321 328 – – 340,321 328 Nov 1999 Oct 2007
M W J Parton 1,036,896 680* 79,374 777* 1,116,270 687* Jul 2001 Nov 2010

* Exercise price exceeds market price as at 31 March 2001.

N o t e s
1 . No options were exercised during the year to 31 March 2001.
2 . The mid-market price of a Marconi share as at 31 March 2001 was 340 pence with a range during the year of 340 pence to 1250 p e n c e .
3 . The options set out above relate to those granted under the 1997 Executive Share Option Scheme, the Marconi 1999 Stock Option Plan, the Phantom Option Schemes,

the Employee 1992 Savings-Related Share Option Scheme and the Marconi UK S h a resave Plan.
4 . On 30 November 1999, each of the executive Directors was granted the right to receive 1,000 Marconi shares at nil cost under the Marconi Launch Share Plan.
5 . The information provided above is a summary and full details of Directors’ shareholdings and options are contained in the Company’s Register of Directors’ Intere s t s .

Personal Shareholding Policy
The Company operates a personal shareholding policy in order to assist further in aligning the interests of executives and shareholders. The policy
re q u i res executive Directors to build up, over a period of time, a target shareholding of Marconi shares with a market value equal to three times annual
basic salary.
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Social Responsibility 

M a rconi is committed to:

• the pursuit of high environment, energy and occupational health and
safety standards across its businesses;

• p rogrammes which support and benefit those communities in which
M a rconi operates through combining global initiatives with local
i m p l e m e n t a t i o n ;

• policies designed to ensure high standards of ethical behaviour in our
businesses; and

• charitable giving in support of local communities and national charities,
p a rticularly those involving our employees in areas of science and
e d u c a t i o n .

E n v i ronment, Energy and Health & Safety (EEHS)
M a rconi is committed to ensuring that all its operations meet world class
e n e rg y, occupational health and safety and environmental standards. The
G roup aims to minimise the impact of its operations and products on the
e n v i ronment and to provide a safe and healthy workplace for all
employees and visitors. EEHS considerations are an integral part of the
way Marconi conducts its business. All employees and contractors are
expected to carry out their responsibilities with three key objectives:

1 . To comply fully with all EEHS legislation wherever Marconi operates
and, in many jurisdictions follow higher Marconi standard s ;

2 . To design and manufacture Marc o n i ’s products to high enviro n m e n t a l
s t a n d a rds minimising the depletion of natural re s o u rces and energ y
and enabling the Company’s products to be recycled at the end of
their life; and

3 . To constantly improve Marc o n i ’s EEHS perf o rmance and pollution
p revention initiatives in all the Company’s global operations.

To support Marc o n i ’s commitment to world class standards in EEHS,
M a rconi formed the Marconi Safety and Environment Unit in July 2000.
The Unit advises Group companies on all aspects of product and facility
management in these key areas. Marconi has new policies setting best 
in class practices that will be benchmarked against key perf o rm a n c e
i n d i c a t o r s .

M a rconi works closely with customers, suppliers, trade and industry
associations and standards organisations to develop and pro m o t e
sustainable management systems and business solutions. Many Marc o n i
businesses are now accredited to ISO14001. Many more accre d i t a t i o n s
a re anticipated during 2001.

M a rconi actively encourages a product life-cycle approach in the
development and delivery of all products and services. Through this
a p p roach, Marconi endeavours to ensure the delivery of safe pro d u c t s
and services, to minimise the depletion of energy and other natural
re s o u rces and to maximise re c y c l i n g .

P rotecting the health and well being of its employees is a core value of
M a rconi. Marc o n i ’s Health and Safety Action Group creates a network of
health and safety professionals working together to identify and addre s s
key risks in Marc o n i ’s businesses around the world.

Community initiatives
M a rconi encourages its employees to participate in local community and
charitable activities. Marconi provides financial and other support to the
charitable activities of its employees. Examples of the sort of activities
can be found in Marconi People on pages 26 and 27. Marc o n i
u n d e rtakes a range of corporate initiatives, including support for local and
national education programmes through work experience and
scholarships. Marconi supports Young Enterprise, Young Engineers in
Britain and, at the local level, Education Action Zone in Coventry and
other community activities. More details of Marc o n i ’s education initiatives
can be found in Marconi People on pages 26 and 27.

The year 2001 sees the centenary of the first transatlantic wireless signal.
On 12 December 1901, Guglielmo Marconi achieved the first wire l e s s
signal to be transmitted across the Atlantic. His success in 1901 marked
a turning point in worldwide communication. In this centenary year, the
Company has chosen to mark this achievement in several ways. In May,
UK Government Minister Patricia Hewitt visited Grey Coat Hospital
School in London to launch the interactive online Marconi Museum,
m a rconicalling (www. m a rconicalling.com). This innovative and
c o m p rehensive website features 10,000 web pages containing an historic
collection of 426 photographs, 33 sound clips and 10 film clips re c o rd i n g
M a rconi and his achievements. Marconi has formed a charitable trust, the
M a rconi Trust, to safeguard the future of the historic Marconi collection of
photographs, re c o rdings and film. www. m a rconicalling.com caters for the
i n t e rests of all ages including students, historians, re s e a rchers and
w i reless enthusiasts, and particularly schoolchildre n .

With links to schools through Young Enterprise, Young Foresight and
N e i g h b o u rhood Engineer, Marconi is also producing education packs as
p a rt of the celebratory projects. Materials for teachers and pupils will
include ‘Marc o n i ’s Atlantic Leap’ and www. m a rconicalling.com, with
content directly relevant to the National Curr i c u l u m .

M a rconi is a major sponsor of the ‘Receiving the World’ centenary events
in Newfoundland from where Marconi himself received the first
transatlantic wireless signal. Events include an international wire l e s s
c o n f e rence and a major historical exhibition. Marconi is providing part i a l
funding and an interactive display at a visitor centre to be located at
Poldhu, Cornwall from where the signals were transmitted and is
o rganising a major international event to be held on 12 December 2001.
At the beginning of the year, the Royal Mint launched a Marc o n i
c e n t e n a ry commemorative £2 coin.

Ethical policy
M a rconi strives to observe high moral, legal and ethical standards in its
relationships with investors, customers, employees and third parties. The
Company strongly believes that this approach is conducive to the long-
t e rm stability and prosperity of the Group. Marconi is putting into place
t h roughout the Group a series of ethical policies designed to set
s t a n d a rds of corporate behaviour at the highest international levels.
During 2000, over 2,000 employees and senior managers re c e i v e d
training to ensure their compliance with the standards set by the OECD
Convention on the Combating of Bribery in International Business.

Charitable donations
Charitable donations made by Marconi companies during the year
amounted to £827,000. The core of the donations were directed at
science and education – reflecting the importance which Marc o n i
attaches to the development of young people, their technical skills
and contribution to the future of the Company. Marconi also support e d
i n d u s t ry - related charities including the Engineering Council and the
Electrical and Electronics Industries Benevolent Association. Business
in the Community also received support along with Rainbow Family
Trust, Action for Kids, REACH and a number of other local and
national charities.
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Group Financial Management

Tre a s u ry Policies
The Gro u p ’s Tre a s u ry activities are co-ordinated by the Director of
Tre a s u ry and Risk Management. In addition to the tre a s u ry, project and
e x p o rt finance functions, the department is responsible for insurance risk
management, and monitors the exposures arising from the various
M a rconi employee share plans. The department does not operate as a
p rofit centre and its operations are conducted within a framework of
policies and pro c e d u res approved by the Board. Tre a s u ry advises
operational management on tre a s u ry matters and undertakes all
derivative transactions except certain forw a rd exchange contracts
relating to the hedging of foreign currency transaction exposures arising
in the operating businesses.

Financial Instru m e n t s
The Group uses financial instruments, including derivatives (principally
i n t e rest rate swaps, cancellable interest rate swaps, currency swaps and
f o rw a rd foreign currency contracts) to manage interest rate and curre n c y
risk exposures. More information on financial instruments is provided in
Note 25 to the accounts.

It is policy that there is no trading in financial instruments, and all financial
i n s t ruments are used for the purpose of financing or hedging identified
e x p o s u res of the Marconi Gro u p .

The main risks faced by the Group in the financial markets are liquidity
risk, interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, counterparty risk and share
price risk. The Board reviews and agrees policies for managing each of
these, which are summarised below.

Liquidity Risk
The Group funds its activities through retained profits and, where
a p p ropriate, by bank borrowings and the debt capital markets. 
M a rc o n i ’s net debt was £3,167 million at 31 March 2001, increased 
f rom £2,145 million at 31 March 2000.

The Gro u p ’s gross borrowings as at 31 March 2001 were £3,677 m i l l i o n
and reflected increased levels of working capital as the businesses gre w,
including higher than normal inventory of optical components together
with increased net capital expenditure in our growth businesses.

At 31 March 2001, the Gro u p ’s cash and current asset investments
totalled £510 million, of which £240 million was denominated in sterling,
£66 million in US dollars, £124 million in euro and the balance of
£ 8 0 million in other curre n c i e s .

M a rconi has two eurobonds comprising of 500 million of bonds due
3 0M a rch 2005 and 1,000 million of bonds due 30 March 2010.

M a rconi obtained credit ratings for two Yankee bond issues fro m
M o o d y ’s and Standard & Poor’s of A3/BBB+, re s p e c t i v e l y. These bond
issues were completed on 19 September 2000 and are comprised of
$ 9 0 0 million of bonds due 15 September 2010, and $900 million of
bonds due 15 September 2030. The net proceeds of these issues were

used to reduce borrowings denominated in US dollars drawn under
M a rc o n i ’s syndicated bank facilities. Marconi has resolved to conduct its
a ffairs and set financial policies so as to retain credit ratings at investment
grade. The main ratios that Marconi targets are EBITDA net intere s t
cover and the cash flow measure of Funds from Operations to Net Debt.

M a rconi has two committed multi-currency revolving credit facilities
syndicated with its main relationship banks, amounting in total to 

7 . 0 billion. At 31 March 2001 drawings under these facilities amounted to
£1,014 million, resulting in unused commitments of £3,343 million with a
weighted average maturity of 1.1 years. These formed the majority of the
total undrawn Group commitments of £3,467 million. At 31 March 2001, 
77 per cent of Marc o n i ’s syndicated bank credit facilities were unutilised.
I t is policy to maintain committed credit facilities well above the level of
utilisation as a matter of prudence and to pre s e rve financial flexibility.

I n t e rest Rate Risk
The Gro u p ’s policy is to maintain at least 50 per cent of debt at fixed
rates of interest. At 31 March 2001, 74 per cent of the Gro u p ’s intere s t -
bearing borrowings were at fixed rates after taking account of intere s t
rate swaps. Of the total interest-bearing borrowings, 55 per cent were at
fixed dollar rates of interest and 18 per cent were at fixed euro rates of
i n t e re s t .

In the year ended 31 March 2001, the average interest rate received on
cash and liquid investments was approximately 4.5 per cent per annum.
The largest pro p o rtion of investments was in sterling deposits – the
G roup held an average of £152 million in sterling deposits, earning an
average interest rate of 5.9 per cent per annum.

Due to the high pro p o rtion of fixed rate debt and the small net exposure
on its floating rate debt and cash and investments, the Gro u p ’s intere s t
c h a rge has limited exposure to interest rate movements. Consequently, a
one percentage point increase in market interest rates would have
d e c reased profit before taxation in the fiscal year 2001 by appro x i m a t e l y
£4 million, or less than one per cent of re p o rted profits. 

F o reign Exchange Risk
The Group is exposed to movements in foreign exchange rates against
sterling for both trading transactions and the translation of net assets and
the profit and loss accounts of overseas subsidiaries. The main trading
c u rrency of the Group is the US dollar, followed by sterling and then the
e u ro. 

The foreign currency management policy of the Group seeks to minimise
the impact of fluctuations in exchange rates on future cash flows and
re q u i res subsidiaries to hedge firm transaction exposures against their
local currency at the time the exposure is identified. These exposures are
hedged by the use of spot and forw a rd foreign exchange contracts. 

The Group has overseas subsidiaries that earn profits in their local
c u rrencies. It is not the Gro u p ’s policy to hedge the exposures arising
f rom the translation of these overseas profits into sterling. 

G ross borrowings at year end were £3,677 million, and 96 per cent of
these were denominated in foreign currencies in order to form a hedge
for the Gro u p ’s investments in currencies other than sterling. Of these,
5 9 per cent denominated in US dollars formed a hedge for the Gro u p ’s
investment in the US, and 34 per cent denominated in euros formed a
hedge for the Gro u p ’s investments in the eurozone. 

Under UK tax regulations, Marconi is exposed to tax on changes in the
translations into sterling of its foreign currency borrowings. Marc o n i
maintains derivative contracts with certain of its banks to eliminate the
cash flow exposure resulting from these tax payments. 

M a rconi has subsidiaries in most of the European countries which are
c o n v e rting to the euro, and the major subsidiaries are located in Italy and
G e rm a n y. To ensure that all eurozone subsidiaries convert in a timely and
e fficient manner, Marconi has established a Euro Pro g r a m m e
Management Office to actively support and co-ordinate a euro
p rogramme throughout the Group. The pro g r a m m e ’s objectives are for all
M a rc o n i ’s eurozone subsidiaries to be compliant well before 1 January
2002, the date for the introduction of euro denominated notes and coins
and for the Group to be capable of conducting commercial and financial
transactions, and account and re p o rt in euros, as and when re q u i re d .
I n t e rnal Group re p o rting from companies in the eurozone was switched
to the euro on 1 April 2001 and in addition a number of Gro u p
companies converted to the euro with effect from that date.

C o u n t e r p a rty Risk
All deposits are made with cre d i t w o rthy and authorised counterpart i e s .
All forw a rd contracts, swaps and other derivative contracts, as described
above, are similarly managed to ensure that the benefits of such financial
hedging are subject to controlled counterparty risk. 

M a rconi, as with our competitors, is facing demand to provide finance to
its customers. In response to this trend during the year we established
M a rconi Finance plc to provide financing arrangements that are attractive
to our customers (including innovative risk-sharing arrangements). Only
modest sums of vendor finance have been committed to customers to
date, which markedly distinguishes Marconi from peer group companies. 

E x p o s u re to customer credit risk through the provision of vendor finance
is strictly controlled by a Credit Committee, comprising of senior financial
management at the corporate head office. Risks are laid off to third
p a rties wherever possible, and it is Marc o n i ’s intention to transfer
outstanding loans and commitments to financial institutions and investors
at the earliest practicable time. As at 31 March 2001, Marc o n i ’s overall
level of vendor finance committed to customers was £170 million, of
which £135 million had been drawn down.

In addition, the Group uses export credit agencies to assist in managing
political and credit risks on major contracts and makes extensive use of
e x p o rt credit insurance in respect of small to medium-sized contracts.

Insurance Risk Management
M a rconi manages centrally the purchase of global insurance policies in
respect of the major insurable risks, including pro p e rty (material
damage/business interruption) and public and products liability. The
global policies implemented at 31 March 2000 are now well established
and have produced major savings as well as much improved cover. The
use of global policies and a single worldwide broker has allowed the
G roup to optimise the overall level of retained risk and concentrate risk
management and insurance spend and eff o rt on those risks which are
c o n s i d e red potentially catastrophic to the Group as a whole. The Gro u p
continues to work with its insurers and advisers to improve its loss
p revention and mitigation processes, with a particular emphasis on
business continuity, and to integrate acquired entities into its risk
management and insurance pro g r a m m e s .

M a rconi Share Price Risk
M a rconi has issued share options to employees under a number of
d i ff e rent option plans. Options may be satisfied by a transfer of existing
M a rconi ord i n a ry shares acquired on the market by the Marc o n i
Employee Trust or other vehicles, or by an issue of new Marconi share s .
I t is intended to use existing shares to satisfy options under some of the
plans. In order to hedge some of the potential cost of acquiring existing
s h a res, the Marconi Employee Trust has entered into contracts
t op u rchase shares in the future at prices which were fixed at the date of
contract. During the course of the year the share price ranged between
a high of 1250 pence and a low of 340 pence. For every 10 per cent
movement in the share price, the fair value of these contracts would
change by £13.6 m i l l i o n .

Exchange Rate Sensitivity
P e rcentage reduction in Group re p o rted 

10 per cent reduction sterling operating profit before goodwill 
in the value of: a m o rtisation and exceptional items

U S $ ( 2 . 1 )
E u ro-traded curre n c i e s ( 2 . 8 )
O t h e r ( 0 . 3 )
To t a l ( 5 . 2 )

Post Balance Sheet Event
M a rconi has two syndicated loan facilities, one for 5.8 billion and the
second for 2.5 billion. On 22 March 2001 1.3 billion of the first facility
e x p i red and on 2 June 2001 the whole of the second facility also expire d .
M a rconi has put in place a 364 day credit facility with a 1 year term out
option in an amount of 3 billion to replace these facilities.
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The Directors have overall responsibility for Marc o n i ’s system of intern a l
c o n t rol and for reviewing its effectiveness. Any system of internal contro l
can only manage and not eliminate the risk of failing to achieve business
objectives and can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance
against material misstatement or loss. 

T h roughout the year under review and up to the date of approval of the
annual re p o rt and accounts the Group has applied the Marconi Business
Risk Management Process. This is an ongoing process for identifying,
evaluating and managing the significant risks faced by the Group. The
M a rconi Business Risk Management Process re q u i res each Division
(Networks, Services, Mobile, Systems and Capital) to maintain a
Business Audit Committee which meets four times a year. These
committees are responsible for facilitating the identification of key risks,
which will prevent the Division and its operating units from achieving their
objectives. This involves an assessment of the impact and likelihood of
these risks and the development of a related mitigation strategy. The
Business Audit Committees also work with Marconi Internal Audit to
develop a programme of assurance over relevant risks. The Executive
Committee considers the risk re p o rts from each Business Audit
Committee and concludes upon the key risks facing the Group. 

S u p p o rt for the Marconi Business Risk Management Process includes:

● An overall Group strategy which is reviewed regularly by the

D i rectors. Executive Directors agree a strategic plan, a

c o m p rehensive phased budget and a set of objectives with the

management of each Division on an annual basis. 
● A management stru c t u re with clearly defined levels of delegated

authority giving major decision making responsibility to the Divisional

Chief Executives, who are accountable for the conduct and

p e rf o rmance of their Divisions within the above strategy.

● Central review and approval pro c e d u res covering major risk are a s

such as acquisitions and disposals, capital expenditure, contract

tenders, litigation, industrial relations, tre a s u ry management, taxation

and environmental issues.

The effectiveness of the Gro u p ’s systems of internal control is re g u l a r l y
reviewed by the Audit Committee which re p o rts its findings for
consideration by the Board. To review the effectiveness of internal contro l
the Audit Committee meets with management and the internal and
e x t e rnal auditors to discuss and re v i e w :

● The key risks facing the Group and the pro g ress being made to

a d d ress them.
● The external and internal audit plans and related re p o rt s .
● Letters of Assurance, which are received from each Divisional Chief

Executive. These letters certify compliance with Group pro c e d u re s

covering areas such as delegation of authority, ethics and risk and

c o n t rols amongst others.

The Directors confirm the effectiveness of the system of internal contro l
for the year ended 31 March 2001 and the period up to 16 May 2001
has been reviewed in line with the criteria set out in the Guidance for
D i rectors on the Combined Code “Internal Control” issued in
September 1999.

To the members of Marconi plc

We have audited the financial statements on pages 48 to 76, 

which have been prepared under the accounting policies set out 

on pages 48 to 49.

Respective responsibilities of Directors and auditors

The Directors are responsible for preparing the annual report,

including as described on page 46 preparation of the financial

statements, which are required to be prepared in accordance with

applicable United Kingdom law and accounting standards. Our

responsibilities, as independent auditors, are established by statute,

the Auditing Practices Board, the UK Listing Authority and by our

profession’s ethical guidance.

We report to you our opinion as to whether the financial statements

give a true and fair view and are properly prepared in accordance

with the Companies Act 1985. We also report to you if, in our

opinion, the Directors’ Report is not consistent with the financial

statements, if the Company has not kept proper accounting records,

if we have not received all the information and explanations we

require for our audit, or if information and explanations we require for

our audit, or if information specified by law or the Listing Rules

regarding Directors’ Remuneration and transactions with the

Company and other members of the Group is not disclosed.

We review whether the corporate governance statement on page

35 reflects the Company’s compliance with the seven provisions

of the Combined Code specified for our review by the UK Listing

Authority, and we report if it does not. We are not required to

consider whether the Boards’ statement of internal control covers

all risks and controls, or form an opinion on the effectiveness of the

Group’s corporate governance procedures or its risks and

control procedures.

We read the other information contained in the annual report,

including the corporate governance statement, and consider whether

it is consistent with the audited financial statements. We consider the

implications for our report if we become aware of any apparent

misstatements or material inconsistencies with the financial

statements.

Basis of audit opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with United Kingdom auditing

standards issued by the Auditing Practices Board. An audit includes

examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts

and disclosures in the financial statements. It also includes an

assessment of the significant estimates and judgements made by

the Directors in the preparation of the financial statements, and of

whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the

circumstances of the Company and the Group, consistently applied

and adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the

information and explanations which we consider necessary in order

to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance

that the financial statements are free from material misstatement,

whether caused by fraud or other irregularity or error. In forming our

opinion we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation

of the information in the financial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion the financial statements give a true and fair view of the

state of affairs of the Company and the Group as at 31 March 2001

and of the loss for the Group for the year then ended and have been

properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 1985.

Deloitte & Touche

Chartered Accountants and Registered Auditors

Hill House

1 Little New Street

London

EC4A 3TR

16 May 2001

The Directors are re q u i red by the Companies Act 1985 to pre p a re
financial statements for each financial year which give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at the end of
the financial year and of the profit or loss of the Group for that period.

The Directors consider that the financial statements on pages 48 to 76,
have been pre p a red on a going concern basis, appropriate accounting
policies have been used and applied consistently, reasonable and
p rudent judgements and estimates have been made and applicable
accounting standards have been followed.

The Directors are responsible for ensuring that the Company keeps
accounting re c o rds which disclose with reasonable accuracy the financial

position of the Company and which enable them to ensure that the
financial statements comply with the Companies Act 1985.

The Directors have a general responsibility for taking such steps as are
reasonably open to them to safeguard the assets of the Company and
the Group and to prevent and detect fraud and other irre g u l a r i t i e s .

After reviewing the Gro u p ’s budget and projected cash flows and taking
into account the Gro u p ’s net monetary debt balances at 31 March 2001,
the Directors consider that the Company and the Group have adequate
re s o u rces to continue as a going concern for the foreseeable future and
a c c o rdingly adopt that basis in preparing the accounts.
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Interest rate risk exposure

The Group hedges its exposure to movements in interest rates

associated with its borrowing primarily by means of interest rate

swaps and forward rate agreements.

Tangible fixed assets

Property, plant, machinery, fixtures, fittings, tools and equipment are

recorded at cost and depreciated on a straight line basis over their

estimated useful lives. Freehold land does not bear depreciation

where the original cost of purchase was separately identified.

Tangible fixed assets are depreciated using the following rates:

Freehold buildings

– 2 per cent to 4 per cent per annum

Leasehold property

– over the period of the lease or 50 years for long leases

Plant and machinery

– 10 per cent per annum on average

Fixtures, fittings, tools and equipment

– 10 per cent per annum

Leased assets

Assets held under finance lease are included in tangible fixed assets

and the present values of lease commitments are included under

creditors. Operating lease payments are charged to the profit and

loss account as incurred.

Goodwill

Purchased goodwill is capitalised and amortised on a straight line

basis over its estimated useful economic life, up to a maximum of

20 years. Each acquisition is separately evaluated for the purposes

of determining the useful economic life. The goodwill is broken down

into its constituent parts, with a value and useful economic life

assigned to each element. Where goodwill is attributable to in-

process research and development this is written off immediately.

The useful economic lives for other components are reviewed

annually and revised if necessary.

Research and Development

Expenditure incurred in the year is charged against profit unless

specifically chargeable to and receivable from customers under

agreed contract terms.

Stocks and contracts in progress

Stocks and contracts in progress are valued at the lower of cost,

including appropriate overheads, and estimated net realisable value.

Provisions are made for any losses incur red or expected to be incurred

on uncompleted contracts. Profit on long-term contracts in progress is

taken when a sale is recorded on part-delivery of products or part-

performance of services, provided that the outcome of the contract

can be assessed with reasonable certainty. Advance payments

received from customers are shown as creditors unless there is a right

of set-off against the value of work undertaken. Progress payments

received are deducted from the value of the work carried out, any

excess being included with payments received in advance.

Taxation

Taxation on profit on ordinary activities is that which has been paid

or becomes payable in respect of the profits for the year. Deferred

taxation is provided on all timing differences which are expected to

reverse in the future without replacement at the rate of tax

anticipated to apply in the year of assessment.

Investments

Joint ventures comprise long-term investments where control is

shared under a contractual arrangement. The sector analysis of

turnover, profit and net assets includes the Group’s share of the

results and net assets of joint ventures.

Associates consist of long-term investments in which the Group

holds a participating interest of not less than 20 per cent and over

which it exercises significant influence. Investments in joint ventures

and associates are stated at the amount of the Group’s share of net

assets including goodwill at 31 March derived from audited or

management accounts made up to that date. (Loss)/profit before

taxation includes the Group’s share of joint ventures and associates.

Other unlisted fixed asset investments and the Company’s

investment in shares in Group companies are stated at cost less

provision for impairment in value. Listed fixed asset investments are

stated at market value. Current asset investments are stated at the

lower of cost and net realisable value except dated listed securities

which are stated at market value.

Investments in the Company’s own shares, held within the GEC

Special Purpose Trust, are included on the Group Balance Sheet at

cost.

Pensions and other post retirement benefits

The expected cost of providing pensions and other post retirement

benefits, as calculated periodically by independent actuaries, is

charged to the profit and loss account so as to spread the cost over

the expected average service lives of current employees.

Share options

In accordance with UITF Abstract 17, Employee share schemes, 

the costs of awarding shares under employee share plans are

charged to the profit and loss accounts over the period to which the

performance criteria relate.

Accounting Policies
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The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with

applicable accounting standards.

The more important Marconi Group accounting policies are

summarised below to facilitate the interpretation of the financial

statements.

Accounting convention

The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost

convention, as modified by the valuation of listed fixed asset

investments.

Basis of consolidation

The financial statements consolidate the accounts of Marconi plc

and all of its subsidiary undertakings (‘Group companies’ or

‘subsidiaries’).

All accounts are made up to 31 March.

Basis of preparation

Marconi plc was incorporated on 17 September 1999. Its ordinary

shares were listed on the London Stock Exchange on 30 November

1999 when it became the new ultimate parent company of the

remaining businesses of Marconi Corporation plc (formerly The

General Electric Company, p.l.c. (“GEC”)) following the separation of

the MES Business, GEC’s international aerospace, naval

shipbuilding, defence electronics and defence systems business,

and the subsequent merger of the MES Business with British

Aerospace Public Limited Company. Prior to 30 November 1999

Marconi plc had not commenced trading or made any profits

or losses.

To provide information which is meaningful to the shareholders of

Marconi plc for the year ended 31 March 2000, the Directors

believed it was necessary to prepare the accounts excluding the

separated business, that is on the basis that the separation of the

MES Business had taken effect prior to 1 April 1999. The Directors

believed that this information reflected the ongoing operations of the

Marconi Group more clearly. Marconi plc’s combination with the

remaining businesses of GEC was accounted for as a merger and, in

the accounts, was presented as if Marconi plc had been the parent

of the remaining businesses since 1 April 1999. The accounts were

presented as if GEC’s investment in the MES Business had been

distributed by way of dividend in specie prior to 1 April 1999 and

reflected amounts recorded in the accounts of the companies

remaining after the separation. 

The Marconi plc group profit and loss account for the period from

17 September 1999 (the date of incorporation) to 31 March 2000 is

presented in note 27 in order to comply with s226 of the Companies

Act 1985. This statutory information consolidates the continuing

Marconi subsidiaries for this period only. No notes are presented.

Turnover

Turnover, excluding VAT, comprises sales to outside customers, and

the Group’s percentage interest in sales of joint ventures. The Group

records transactions as sales when the delivery of products or

performance of services takes place in accordance with the terms

of sale.

Currency translation

Profits and losses of overseas subsidiaries, joint ventures and

associates and cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated at

the average rates of exchange during the year. Non-sterling net

assets are translated at year-end rates of exchange. Key rates used

are as follows:

Average rates Year-end rates

2001 2000 2001 2000

US dollar 1.48 1.62 1.42 1.60

Italian lira 3,153 3,015 3,114 3,228

Euro 1.63 1.56 1.61 1.67

Reserves are adjusted to include the differences arising from the

restatement to year-end rates of exchange of profits and losses and

the translation of the net assets of overseas subsidiaries, joint

ventures and associates at the beginning of the year. All other

exchange gains and losses are included in loss on ordinary activities

before taxation.

Financial instruments

The Group uses financial instruments, including interest rate and

currency swaps, solely for the purpose of raising finance for its

operations and to manage interest and currency risks associated

with the Group’s underlying business activities. There is no trading

activity in financial instruments.

Foreign exchange transaction exposures

The Group hedges actual foreign exchange exposure as soon as

there is a firm contractual commitment. Forward contracts are used

to hedge the exposure. Amounts are included in the accounts at the

forward exchange contract rate. If the contract ceases to be a hedge

any subsequent gains or losses are recognised through the profit

and loss account.

Balance sheet translation exposures

A large proportion of the Group’s net assets are denominated in

overseas currencies. Where appropriate, the Group hedges these

balance sheet translation exposures by borrowing in relevant

currencies and markets, and by the use of currency swaps. Currency

swaps are used only as balance sheet hedging instruments, and the

Group does not hedge the currency translation of its profit and loss

account. Exchange gains or losses arising on the hedging

borrowings and on the notional principal of currency swaps during

their life and at termination or maturity are dealt with as a movement

in reserves.
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Consolidated Profit and Loss Account
For the year ended 31 March
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2001 2000
Note £ million £ million

Turnover

Group 3 6,653 5,437

Share of joint ventures 289 287

1 6,942 5,724

Operating profit/(loss)

Group operating profit/(loss)
Excluding goodwill amortisation and exceptional items 785 725
Goodwill amortisation (671) (763)
Operating exceptionals 4a (32) (106)

3 82 (144)
Share of operating profit of joint ventures

Excluding goodwill amortisation and exceptional items 22 25
Goodwill amortisation (2) (2)
Operating exceptionals 4a – (1)

20 22

102 (122)

Group and joint venture operating profit before goodwill amortisation and exceptional items 807 750

Share of operating profit of associates 8 7

Operating profit/(loss) 1 110 (115)
Exceptional items, merger/demerger receipts and (costs) 4b 20 737

Exceptional items, gains less losses on disposals
of subsidiaries and other fixed assets 4c (38) 4

Income from loans, deposits and investments
less interest payable

Group 5 (154) (107)
Share of joint ventures and associates 5 1 4

(153) (103)
(Loss)/profit on ordinary activities before taxation

Excluding goodwill amortisation and exceptional items 662 654
Goodwill amortisation and exceptional items (723) (131)

1 (61) 523
Tax (charge)/credit on (loss)/profit on ordinary activities

Excluding tax on goodwill amortisation and exceptional items (188) (196)
Tax on goodwill amortisation and exceptional items (17) 198

6 (205) 2

(Loss)/profit on ordinary activities after taxation (266) 525
Equity minority interests 7 (5) (3)

(Loss)/profit on ordinary activities attributable to the shareholders (271) 522
Equity dividends 8 (148) (142)

Retained (loss)/profit for the financial year (419) 380

Basic (loss)/earnings per share 2 (9.8p) 19.4p
Diluted (loss)/earnings per share 2 (9.8p) 19.1p
Earnings per share excluding goodwill amortisation and exceptional items 2 17.0p) 16.9p

Group Company
2001 2000 2001 2000

Note £ million £ million £ million £ million

Fixed Assets
Goodwill 10 5,395 4,397 – –
Tangible assets 11 1,142 758 – –
Investments: 12

Joint ventures
Share of gross assets 178 246
Share of gross liabilities (90) (92)

88 154
Associates 45 47
Other investments 458 1,425
Shares in Group companies 439 136

591 1,626 439 136

7,128 6,781 439 136

Current Assets
Stocks and contracts in progress 13 1,721 946 – –
Debtors 14 2,708 2,250 526 548
Investments 15 56 80 – –
Cash at bank and in hand 15 454 544 141 –

4,939 3,820 667 548

Creditors: amounts falling due within one year 16 (3,957) (4,007) (115) (93)

Net current assets/(liabilities) 982 (187) 552 455

Total assets less current liabilities 8,110 6,594 991 591

Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year 16 (2,591) (1,078) – –
Provisions for liabilities and charges 18 (882) (870) – –

4,637 4,646 991 591

Capital and reserves
Called up share capital 139 136 139 136
Shares to be issued 310 247 310 247
Share premium account 489 1 489 1
Capital reserve 375 375 – –
Revaluation reserve 267 1,156 – –
Profit and loss account 3,042 2,715 53 207

Equity shareholders’ interests 19 4,622 4,630 991 591
Equity minority interests 15 16 – –

4,637 4,646 991 591

These accounts were approved by the Board of Directors on 16 May 2001.
Signed on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sir Roger Hurn
Directors

Lord Simpson }
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Cash Flow Statement
For the year ended 31 March
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2001 2000
Note £ million £ million

Net cash (outflow)/inflow from operating activities
Group operating profit/(loss) 82 (144)
Depreciation charge 211 155
Goodwill amortisation 671 763
Increase in stock (764) (122)
Increase in debtors (307) (374)
Increase in creditors 129 349
Decrease in provisions (128) (17)

(106) 610
Dividends from joint ventures and associates 68 68
Returns on investments and servicing of finance

Income from loans, deposits and investments 27 114
Interest paid (160) (148)
Dividends paid to minority interests (1) –

(134) (34)
Tax paid

UK corporation tax paid (74) (111)
Overseas tax paid (63) (3)

(137) (114)
Capital expenditure and financial investment

Purchases of tangible fixed assets (578) (305)
Purchases less sales of fixed asset investments 527 (129)
Sales of tangible fixed assets 17 40

(34) (394)
Acquisitions and disposals

Investments in subsidiary companies 22a (388) (4,111)
Net cash acquired with subsidiary companies – 137

Sales of interests in subsidiary companies and associates 22b 182 –
Net overdraft disposed with subsidiary companies 3 –

(203) (3,974)
Exceptional cash flows related to merger/demerger 20a (56) 1,386
Equity dividends paid to shareholders (146) (397)

Cash outflow before use of liquid resources and financing (748) (2,849)

Net cash inflow from management of liquid resources 20b 166 656
Net cash flow from financing

Issues of ordinary shares 36 161
Other 20c 316 1,687

Decrease in cash and net bank balances repayable on demand (230) (345)

Reconciliation of Net Cash Flow to Movements in Net Monetary (Debt)/Funds
For the year ended 31 March

2001 2000
Note £ million £ million

Decrease in cash and net bank balances repayable on demand (230) (345)
Net cash inflow from management of liquid resources (166) (656)
Net cash inflow from increase in debt and lease financing (316) (1,803)

Change in net monetary (debt)/funds resulting from cash flows (712) (2,804)

Net debt acquired with subsidiaries (23) (120)
Other non-cash changes (31) –
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes (256) 155

Movement in net monetary (debt)/funds in the period (1,022) (2,769)

Net monetary (debt)/funds at 1 April 21 (2,145) 624

Net monetary debt at 31 March 21 (3,167) (2,145)

2001 2000
£ million £ million

(Loss)/profit on ordinary activities attributable to the shareholders
Group (290) 500
Share of joint ventures 13 18
Share of associates 6 4

(271) 522
Listed fixed asset investments

(Deficit)/surplus due to movement in share price (375) 419
Exchange rate adjustments 6 (110)

(369) 309
Offset due to gains on hedging – 76

(369) 385
Exchange differences on translation

Group 215 48
Share of associates 3 (4)

218 44

Total recognised gains and losses (422) 951

Reconciliation of Movements in Shareholders’ Funds
For the year ended 31 March

2001 2000
£ million £ million

Total recognised gains and losses (422) 951
Equity dividends (148) (142)
Shares to be issued 71 247
Issues of ordinary shares 491 161

Total movement in the period (8) 1,217

Equity shareholders’ interests at 1 April 4,630 3,413

Equity shareholders’ interests at 31 March 4,622 4,630
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1 Principal activities, profit contributions, markets and net assets employed continued
Analysis of turnover by territory of destination

2001 2000
£ million £ million

United Kingdom 1,777 1,506
The Americas 2,852 2,359
Rest of Europe 1,677 1,234
Africa, Asia and Australasia 636 625

6,942 5,724

Analysis of operating profit before goodwill amortisation and exceptional items, turnover and net assets by territory of origin
Profit Turnover Net assets

2001 2000 2001 2000 2001 2000
£ million £ million £ million £ million £ million £ million

United Kingdom 384 378 2,286 1,993 953 551
The Americas 173 306 2,927 2,499 944 685
Rest of Europe 223 29 1,334 870 665 391
Africa, Asia and Australasia 27 37 395 362 80 78

807 750 6,942 5,724 2,642 1,705

2 (Loss)/earnings per share
Earnings per share are calculated by reference to a weighted average of 2,757.7 million ordinary shares (2000 2,696.9 million ordinary shares)
in issue during the year.

An adjusted basic earnings per share has been presented in order to highlight the underlying performance of the Group, and is calculated as
set out in the table below.

Reconciliation of earnings per share excluding goodwill amortisation and exceptional items
2001 2000

(Loss)/
(Loss)/ earnings Earnings

earnings per share Earnings per share
£ million pence £ million pence

(Loss)/earnings and basic (loss)/earnings per share (271) (9.8) 522 19.4
Exceptional items (note 4)

Operating exceptionals 32 1.2 107 3.9
Merger/demerger receipts and (costs) (20) (0.8) (737) (27.3)
Gains less losses on disposals of subsidiaries and other fixed assets 38 1.4 (4) (0.1)

Taxation arising on exceptional items (note 6) 17 0.6 (198) (7.3)
Goodwill amortisation 673 24.4 765 28.3

469 17.0 455 16.9

The calculation of diluted (loss)/earnings per share is based on a loss of £271 million (2000 profit £522 million) and on 2,756.9 million ordinary
shares (2000 2,737.4 million ordinary shares), being the weighted average number after adjusting for dilutive potential ordinary shares.

Notes to the Accounts
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1 Principal activities, profit contributions, markets and net assets employed
Analysis of results and net assets by class of business

Profit Turnover Net assets
2001 2000 2001 2000 2001 2000

£ million £ million £ million £ million £ million £ million

Communications Networks 465 416 3,318 2,535 1,825 807
Communications Services 112 73 1,016 543 136 33
Mobile Communications 15 26 331 295 127 123
Systems 179 144 1,481 1,356 442 358
Capital 44 111 835 1,005 77 292
Other (including intra-activity sales) (8) (20) (39) (10) 35 92

807 750 6,942 5,724 2,642 1,705

Goodwill (673) (765) 5,413 4,417
Operating exceptionals (note 4a) (32) (107)

102 (122)
Associates 8 7 45 47

Operating profit/(loss) 110 (115)
Exceptional items, merger/demerger receipts and (costs) 20 737

Exceptional items, gains less losses on
disposals of subsidiaries and other fixed assets (38) 4

Interest bearing assets and liabilities including
joint ventures and associates (153) (103) (2,817) (703)
Unallocated net liabilities (646) (820)

(61) 523 4,637 4,646

Comparative figures have been restated to reflect the changes in the structure of the Group in the year.

The Marconi share of joint ventures’ profit, turnover and net assets are included under Capital.

Sales by Group companies to joint ventures and associates amounted to £60 million (2000 £65 million). Purchases from joint ventures and
associates amounted to £1 million (2000 £4 million).

The contribution of subsidiaries acquired in the year ended 31 March 2001 was £237million to turnover and £10 million to operating profit
before goodwill amortisation and operating exceptionals.

Analysis of turnover by class of business
To customers in the To customers

United Kingdom overseas
2001 2000 2001 2000

£ million £ million £ million £ million

Communications Networks 971 755 2,347 1,780
Communications Services 354 240 662 303
Mobile Communications 47 18 284 277
Systems 16 16 1,465 1,340
Capital 381 463 454 542
Other (including intra-activity sales) 8 14 (47) (24)

1,777 1,506 5,165 4,218
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4 Exceptional items continued
b Merger/demerger receipts and (costs)

2001 2000
£ million £ million

Dividends and other cash receipts – 1,409
Separation costs:

Share option costs – (633)
Other receipts/(costs) 20 (15)

Rebranding costs – (24)

20 737

Other receipts/(costs) for the year ended 31 March 2001 represents final settlement of the MES Transaction in the year.

In the year ended 31 March 2000, the merger/demerger receipts and (costs) above comprise dividends and other cash received by Marconi
from the defence businesses that were separated from GEC (at the time Marconi merged with the non-defence business), minus the cost of
establishing the Marconi share option plans that were approved at the EGM in November 1999 and other related costs of launching the new
Company.

c Gains less losses on disposals of subsidiaries and other fixed assets
2001 2000

£ million £ million

Gains on disposals of subsidiaries and other fixed assets 75 –
Amounts written off investments (110) –
Other (3) 4

(38) 4

5 Income from loans, deposits and investments, less interest payable
2001 2000

£ million £ million

Income from fixed asset investments
Listed investments 18 19
Unlisted investments 5 3

Income receivable from current asset investments and cash
Loans and deposits 27 54
Other 9 31

59 107

Interest payable
Bank loans and overdrafts (187) (199)
Loan capital (3) (3)
Other (20) (8)
Syndicated loan fees (3) (4)

(213) (214)

(154) (107)
Share of net income receivable of joint ventures and associates 1 4

(153) (103)

Notes to the Accounts continued
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3 Group operating profit/(loss)
2001 2000

£ million £ million

Sales to customers outside the Group 6,653 5,437
Own work capitalised 22 3
Other operating income 69 55

6,744 5,495

(Increase)/decrease in stocks of finished goods
and work in progress (317) 52
Raw materials and consumables 2,679 2,228
Staff costs (note 9) 1,629 1,373
Depreciation and amortisation 882 918
Cost of hire of plant 24 24
Other external and operating charges 1,763 1,042
Auditors’ remuneration 2 2

6,662 5,639

Operating profit/(loss) arising in the Group 82 (144)

Included in other external and operating charges are the following amounts for research and development expenditure:

2001 2000
£ million £ million

Communications Networks 472 308
Mobile Communications 69 54
Systems 70 67
Capital 58 42

669 471

4 Exceptional items
a Operating exceptionals

2001 2000
£ million £ million

Restructuring and reorganisation costs
Acquisitions 5 20
Other businesses

Group 27 43
Joint ventures – 1

Year 2000 costs
Group – 43

32 107

Communications Networks 19 39
Communications Services 10 2
Mobile Communications 6 6
Systems 14 33
Capital 13 20
Other (30) 7

32 107

United Kingdom (26) 37
The Americas 18 29
Rest of Europe 28 35
Africa, Asia and Australasia 12 6

32 107
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7 Equity minority interests
Equity minority interests represent the share of the profits less losses on ordinary activities attributable to the interests of equity shareholders
in subsidiaries which are not wholly owned by the Group.

8 Equity dividends
2001 2000

£ million £ million

Interim 1.90p per share (2000 1.80p) 52 49
Final 3.45p per share (2000 3.40p) 96 93

148 142

9 Directors and employees
a Directors’ remuneration
Details of Directors’ remuneration specified for audit by the UK Listing Authority are given in the Report to Shareholders by the Board on
Directors’ Remuneration on pages 38 to 41.

b Average monthly number of employees by sector
Number (‘000)

2001 2000

Communications Networks 24 20
Communications Services 9 5
Mobile Communications 4 3
Systems 8 9
Capital 6 11
Other 1 1

Group employees 52 49
Share of joint venture employees 4 4

Group and share of joint venture employees 56 53

c Staff costs
2001 2000

£ million £ million

Wages and salaries 1,423 1,206
Social security costs 164 141
Other pension costs 42 26

1,629 1,373

United Kingdom 580 527
The Americas 592 546
Rest of Europe 382 228
Africa, Asia and Australasia 75 72

1,629 1,373

Included within the staff costs of £1,629 million (2000 £1,373 million) for the year ended 31 March 2001 are £16 million (2000 £10 million) of
costs related to ongoing remuneration costs regarding the phantom option schemes.

Notes to the Accounts continued
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6 Tax
a Tax charge/(credit) on (loss)/profit on ordinary activities

2001 2000
£ million £ million

United Kingdom taxation
Corporation tax 30% (2000 30%) 249 147
Double taxation relief (105) (82)
Deferred taxation 30% (2000 30%) 7 (25)
Joint ventures and associates 6 8

157 48

Overseas taxation
Current 96 30
Deferred taxation (54) (79)
Joint ventures and associates 4 3

46 (46)

Under/(over) provisions of prior years
United Kingdom 1 1
Overseas 1 (5)

205 (2)

In the year ended 31 March 2000, the tax provided is low as the exceptional gains in respect of the separated business were not taxable in
full. Conversely, amortisation of goodwill arising on acquisitions does not attract tax relief.

Included in the tax on (loss)/profit are the following amounts relating to exceptional items:
2001 2000

£ million £ million

Operating exceptionals (11) (25)
Merger/demerger receipts and (costs) – (175)
Gains less losses on disposals of subsidiaries and other fixed assets 28 2

17 (198)

b Deferred taxation assets
Group Company

£ million £ million

At 1 April 2000 150 –
Credited to profit and loss account 47 –
Exchange rate adjustment (2) –

At 31 March 2001 195 –

Group Company
2001 2000 2001 2000

£ million £ million £ million £ million

Tax effect of timing differences on:
Provisions and accruals for liabilities and charges 220 153 – –
Accelerated capital allowances (25) (3) – –

195 150 – –

Deferred tax asset balances are shown in debtors (note 14).

No provision is made for any taxation that may arise if reserves of overseas subsidiaries were distributed as such distributions are not
expected to occur in the foreseeable future.
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12 Fixed asset investments
a Joint ventures, associates and other

Shares Other investments
Cost less Share
amounts of post Investment

written acquisition Cost or in own
off reserves Loans valuation Provisions shares Total

Group £ million £ million £ million £ million £ million £ million £ million

At 1 April 2000 166 34 1 1,427 (2) – 1,626
Exchange rate adjustment – 3 – 6 – – 9
Additions – – 15 123 – 8 146
Disposals and repayments (71) (22) – (619) – – (712)
Profits less losses retained – 7 – – – – 7
Deficit on valuation of listed investments – – – (375) (110) – (485)

At 31 March 2001 95 22 16 562 (112) 8 591

The investment in joint ventures and associates includes capitalised goodwill of £18 million (2000 £20 million). The principal joint ventures and
associates are shown on page 76.

Market values
Listed fixed asset investments are stated at market value, as follows:

2001 2000
£ million £ million

Alstom - listed overseas 236 892

Other investments - listed in the United Kingdom 20 405

Other investments - listed overseas 73 115

No provision has been made for taxation of £6 million (2000 £178 million) which could arise if these investments were realised at the values
stated.

During the year ended 31 March 2000 Marconi acquired a 27 per cent stake in Atlantic Telecom Group PLC. During the year ended 31 March
2001, Atlantic Telecom Group PLC purchased First Telecom Group PLC for £520 million through a new share issue. The effect of this
transaction was to dilute the Company’s stake to below 20 per cent. After careful review of the Company’s involvement in Atlantic Telecom
Group PLC it does not believe that it exercises significant influence and, accordingly, has treated Atlantic Telecom Group PLC as a listed
fixed asset investment from the date of acquisition.

After careful review of the Company’s actual involvement in Alstom, the Company does not believe that it exercises significant influence and,
accordingly, has treated Alstom as a fixed asset investment. On 9 February 2001 the Group, in conjunction with Alcatel SA, carried out a
placement of an equal number of Alstom shares. The effect of the placement was to further reduce the Group’s shareholding in Alstom SA to
below 10 per cent.

At 16 May 2001 the market value of the investments shown above was, in aggregate, £341 million.
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9 Directors and employees continued
d Share options
At 31 March 2001 options were still outstanding in respect of the Company’s ordinary shares of 5 pence each under the Company’s option plans:

Amount Date
Number of shares Subscription normally

of shares £ million price exercisable

The Employee 1992 Savings-Related Share Option Scheme 9,311,934 0.5 203-273p 2001-2003
The 1984 Managers’ Share Option Scheme 1,045,834 0.1 183-266p 2001-2004
The 1997 Executive Share Option Scheme 14,883,011 0.7 311-384p 2001-2008
The Marconi UK Sharesave Plan 14,263,094 0.7 538-748p 2003-2006
The Marconi International Sharesave Plan 1,434,931 0.1 737p 2004-2006
The Marconi Launch Share Plan 37,751,480 1.9 – 2002-2006
The Marconi 1999 Stock Option Plan 48,457,634 2.4 670-1009p 2002-2010
The MSI 1995 Stock Option Plan 234,073 – 3-274p 2001-2008
The MSI 1999 Stock Option Plan 4,609,408 0.2 212-957p 2001-2010
The MSIH Stock Option Plan 2,160,980 0.1 212-930p 2001-2005
The Mariposa Technology, Inc. 1998 Employee Incentive Plan 2,212,314 0.1 9-56p 2001-2010
The Marconi Restricted Share Plan 11,146,535 0.6 0-947p 2001-2004
The Phantom Option Schemes 92,425,800 4.6 5-1250p 2001-2009

The Directors’ interests as defined by the Companies Act 1985 (which includes trustee holdings and family interests incorporating holdings
of minor children) in shares in the Company and its subsidiaries are set out in the Report to Shareholders by the Board on Directors’
Remuneration on pages 38 to 41.

10 Goodwill
Cost Amortisation Net book value

£ million £ million £ million

At 1 April 2000 5,573 (1,176) 4,397
Acquisitions (note 22(a)) 1,274 1,274
Disposals (15) 8 (7)
Charged to profit and loss account (671) (671)
Exchange rate adjustment 481 (79) 402

At 31 March 2001 7,313 (1,918) 5,395

11 Tangible fixed assets Fixtures, Payments on
fittings, account and

Freehold Leasehold property Plant and tools and assets under
property Long Short machinery equipment construction Total

Group £ million £ million £ million £ million £ million £ million £ million

Cost at 1 April 2000 203 19 37 570 557 91 1,477
Exchange rate adjustment 15 1 5 38 21 7 87
Additions 50 – 3 172 192 168 585
Businesses acquired 1 – 4 16 3 – 24
Completed construction 40 – – 4 24 (68) –
Disposals (13) – (1) (28) (61) – (103)
Businesses disposed (12) – – (35) (27) (1) (75)

Cost at 31 March 2001 284 20 48 737 709 197 1,995
Depreciation at 1 April 2000 56 3 9 293 358 – 719
Exchange rate adjustment 2 – 2 22 12 – 38
Charged to profit and loss account 13 – 3 91 104 – 211
Disposals (5) – – (17) (41) – (63)
Businesses disposed (4) – (1) (24) (23) – (52)

Depreciation at 31 March 2001 62 3 13 365 410 – 853

Net book value at 31 March 2001 222 17 35 372 299 197 1,142
Net book value at 31 March 2000 147 16 28 277 199 91 758

The net book value of tangible fixed assets of the Group includes an amount of £4 million (2000 £4 million) in respect of assets held under
finance leases, on which the depreciation charge for the year was £1 million (2000 £1 million).



15 Current asset investments and cash at bank and in hand
Group Company

2001 2000 2001 2000
£ million £ million £ million £ million

Dated securities at market value
Listed securities – cost £25 million (2000 £68 million) 26 69 – –

Other investments at lower of cost and market value listed in the United Kingdom
Market value £30 million (2000 £11 million) 30 11 – –

Investments 56 80 – –
Cash at bank and in hand 454 544 141 –

510 624 141 –

Divided between
Cash and bank deposits repayable on demand (note 25) 259 221 141 –
Liquid resources (note 25) 251 403 – –

510 624 141 –

16 Creditors
Group Company

2001 2000 2001 2000
£ million £ million £ million £ million

Amounts falling due within one year
Bank loans and overdrafts

Repayable on demand 342 74 – –
Other 1,018 1,747 – –

Debenture loans 44 8 – –
Obligations under finance leases 3 1 – –

1,407 1,830 – –
Payments received in advance 185 106 – –
Trade creditors 963 825 – –
Amounts owed to joint ventures and associates 9 10 – –
Taxation 164 154 – –
Other taxation and social security 107 102 – –
Other creditors 400 330 – –
Accruals and deferred income 626 557 – –
Amounts owed to Group undertakings – – 19 –
Proposed dividend 96 93 96 93

3,957 4,007 115 93

Amounts falling due after more than one year
Bank loans and overdrafts 23 – – –
Debenture loans 78 37 – –
Bonds 2,165 894 – –
Obligations under finance leases 4 8 – –

2,270 939 – –
Payments received in advance 53 60 – –
Trade creditors 1 1 – –
Other creditors 267 78 – –

2,591 1,078 – –
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12 Fixed asset investments continued
On 22 May 2000, the rights of participants in GEC’s share option schemes to exercise options over GEC shares and receive a Securities
Package from the GECSpecial Purpose Trust (the “Trust”), a discretionary trust under which employees of the Marconi Group are potential
beneficiaries, lapsed.

As at 31 March 2001, the assets of the Trust comprised 4,259,775 Marconi ordinary shares of 5p each, 1,832,588 BAE Systems shares and
£582,839 of BAE Capital Amortising Loan Stock (“CALS”). It is anticipated that, following realisation of assets to discharge the Trust’s
obligations, the remaining assets of the Trust will be held as Marconi shares and distributed to employees in conjunction with Marconi’s
employee share plans. Dividends on shares held in the Trust have not been waived.

The Trust has been consolidated in accordance with UITF 13, Accounting for ESOP Trusts. Investments in own shares at the year end
represents the cost of the Marconi shares. Other investments include the BAE Systems shares and CALS. The market value of the Marconi
shares at 31 March 2001 was £14.5 million.

b Shares in Group companies
Cost

Company £ million

At 1 April 2000 136
Additions 303

At 31 March 2001 439

13 Stocks and contracts in progress
Group Company

2001 2000 2001 2000
£ million £ million £ million £ million

Raw materials and bought-in components 637 292 – –
Work in progress 477 201 – –

Less: Payments on account (4) (1) – –
Long-term contract work in progress 80 129 – –

Less: Payments on account – (19) – –
Finished goods 531 344 – –

1,721 946 – –

14 Debtors
Group Company

2001 2000 2001 2000
£ million £ million £ million £ million

Amounts falling due within one year
Trade debtors 2,096 1,610 – –
Amounts recoverable on contracts 37 102 – –
Amounts owed by joint ventures and associates 28 31 – –
Other debtors 146 163 6 –
Prepayments and accrued income 79 91 – –
Amounts owed by group undertakings – – 520 548

2,386 1,997 526 548

Amounts falling due after more than one year
Trade debtors 20 20 – –
Amounts recoverable on contracts 6 1 – –
Other debtors 87 66 – –
Prepayments and accrued income 14 16 – –
Deferred taxation (note 6) 195 150 – –

2,708 2,250 526 548
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18 Provisions for liabilities and charges
Share Group

Restructuring options Other Total Company
£ million £ million £ million £ million £ million

At 1 April 2000 68 396 406 870 –
Exchange rate adjustment 2 – 19 21 –
Acquisitions 4 42 43 89 –
Disposals (1) – (9) (10) –
Charged 38 16 77 131 –
Released (43) – (91) (134) –
Utilised (22) (12) (51) (85) –

At 31 March 2001 46 442 394 882 –

Other provisions mainly comprise expected cost of maintenance under guarantees, other work in respect of products delivered, losses on
contract work in progress and other provisions for post retirement benefits. The associated outflows are generally expected to occur over the
lives of the products and contracts which are long-term in nature.

19 Equity shareholders’ interests
a Share capital

Number of shares £

Fully paid ordinary shares of 5p each
Shares allotted at 1 April 2000 2,723,996,450 136,199,822.50

Shares allotted under The Managers’ 1984 Share Option Scheme 1,094,525 54,726.25
Shares allotted under The 1992 Savings-Related Share Option Scheme 3,490,189 174,509.45
Shares allotted under The 1997 Executive Share Option Scheme 3,061,293 153,064.65
Shares allotted under Employee Stock Purchase Plan 1,813,290 90,664.50
Shares allotted under other option plans 2,120,744 106,037.20
Shares allotted in respect of businesses acquired 49,613,405 2,480,670.25

Shares allotted at 31 March 2001 2,785,189,896 139,259,494.80
Unissued ordinary shares 3,214,810,104 160,740,505.20

Authorised 6,000,000,000 300,000,000.00

All share issues have been satisfied by cash consideration, with the exception of the shares allotted in respect of acquisitions.

b Group reserves
Shares Share

to be premium Capital Revaluation Profit and
issued account reserve reserve loss account

£ million £ million £ million £ million £ million

At 1 April 2000 247 1 375 1,156 2,715
Added/(deducted) in the year 71 488 – (369) (201)
Transferred in the year (8) – – (520) 528

At 31 March 2001 310 489 375 267 3,042

Shares to be issued represents Marconi ordinary shares to be issued to employees under the Marconi Launch Share Plan and ordinary shares
to be issued to employees as a result of acquisitions made during the financial year.

Exchange losses of £265 million and related tax credits of £79 million on borrowings hedged against equity investments denominated in
foreign currencies and losses of £104 million and related tax credits of £31 million on associated tax equalisation swaps have been taken to
Group reserves.
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17 Borrowings
Group Company

2001 2000 2001 2000
£ million £ million £ million £ million

Bank loans and overdrafts
Unsecured 1,383 1,821 – –

Debenture loans
Secured 33 30 – –
Unsecured 89 15 – –

Bonds 2,165 894 – –
Obligations under finance leases 7 9 – –

3,677 2,769 – –
Less amounts falling due within one year (1,407) (1,830) – –

2,270 939 – –

Analysis of repayments of long-term bor rowings
Bank loans

Between one and two years 23 – – –
Debenture loans, bonds and finance leases

Between one and two years 10 6 – –
Between two and five years 358 315 – –
In more than five years 1,879 618 – –

2,270 939 – –

Debenture loans and bonds
Repayable at par wholly within five years (average rate 5.5 per cent) 354 315 – –
Repayable at par partly or wholly after five years mainly by
instalments (average rate 7.5 per cent)

Total amount 1,933 624 – –
Instalment due after five years 1,879 612 – –

Bonds
On 19 September 2000, the Company issued for cash consideration two unsecured US dollar bonds. The first dollar bond has a principal
amount of $900 million with a coupon rate of 7.75 per cent per annum, maturing on 15 September 2010. The second dollar bond has a
principal amount of $900 million with a coupon rate of 8.375 per cent per annum, maturing on 15 September 2030.

On 30 March 2000, the Company issued for cash consideration two unsecured euro bonds. The first euro bond has a principal amount of
500 million with a coupon rate of 5.625 per cent per annum, maturing on 30 March 2005. The second euro bond has a principal amount of
1,000 million with a coupon rate of 6.375 per cent per annum, maturing on 30 March 2010.

Maturity
An analysis of the maturity of the Group’s debt is given in note 25.

Borrowing facilities
The Group has various undrawn committed borrowing facilities. The undrawn facilities available at 31 March were:

Group
2001 2000

£ million £ million

Expiring in one year or less 1,679 2,306
Expiring in more than two years but not more than five years 1,788 1,208

3,467 3,514
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21 Analysis of net monetary (debt)/funds
Acquisitions/

disposals Other Exchange At
At 1 April (excluding cash non-cash rate 31 March

2000 Cash flow & overdrafts) changes adjustment 2001
£ million £ million £ million £ million £ million £ million

Cash at bank and in hand 221 28 – 10 259
Overdrafts (74) (258) – (10) (342)

(230)

Liquid resources 403 (166) – – 14 251

Amounts falling due within one year
Bank loans (1,747) 941 – – (212) (1,018)
Debenture loans (8) (36) – – – (44)
Finance leases (1) – – (2) – (3)

Amounts falling due after more than one year
Bank loans – (23) – – – (23)
Debenture loans (37) 9 (19) (31) – (78)
Bonds (894) (1,213) – – (58) (2,165)
Finance leases (8) 6 (4) 2 – (4)

(316)

(2,145) (712) (23) (31) (256) (3,167)

22 Acquisitions and disposals
a Investments in subsidiary companies
During the year acquisitions were made and accounted for using the acquisition method. Changes in the structure of the Group are shown in
the Directors’ Report on page 36.

Analysis of fair value of identifiable net assets of subsidiaries acquired
Revaluation 2001 2000

Book value adjustments Total Total
£ million £ million £ million £ million

Tangible fixed assets 24 – 24 183
Investments – – – 4
Inventory 31 (3) 28 227
Debtors 63 (2) 61 323
Cash at bank and in hand – – – 137
Liquid resources – – – 108
Creditors and provisions (80) (12) (92) (559)
Loan capital (19) – (19) (228)
Finance leases (4) – (4) –
Taxation – – – (11)
Minority interest – – – (1)

15 (17) (2) 183

Satisfied by:
Cash subscribed 388 4,111
Loan notes issued 31 –
Shares issued 455 –
Shares to be issued 71 –
Deferred consideration 327 –

1,272 4,111

Goodwill arising in the Group (note 10) 1,274 3,928

The fair value adjustments principally relate to the revaluation of inventory and debtors to net realisable value and provisions for professional
costs in respect of the aborted pre-acquisition flotation of Metapath Software International, Inc.
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19 Equity shareholders’ interests continued
c Company reserves

Profit and
loss account

£ million

At 1 April 2000 207
Loss for the year (162)
Transferred in the year 8

At 31 March 2001 53

£22 million (2000 £34 million) of the Group’s balance on the profit and loss account is not available for distribution at 31 March 2001, being
the Group’s share of reserves held by joint ventures and associates.

Pursuant to Section 230 of the Companies Act 1985 the Company is not presenting its own profit and loss account in addition to the
consolidated profit and loss account on page 50. The loss of the Company for the financial year amounted to £14 million 
(17 September 1999 (date of incorporation) to 31 March 2000 profit £349 million).

20 Cash flow
a Exceptional cash flows related to merger/demerger

2001 2000
£ million £ million

Dividends and other cash receipts – 1,409
Other (56) (23)

(56) 1,386

Other exceptional cash flows related to merger/demerger for the year ended 31 March 2001 represents final settlement of the MES
Transaction in the year.

b Net cash inflow from management of liquid resources
Comprising term deposits generally of less than one year and other readily disposable current asset investments

2001 2000
£ million £ million

Deposits made with banks and similar financial institutions (1,325) (7,041)
Deposits withdrawn from banks and similar financial institutions 1,433 7,559
Purchases of Government and similar securities – (2)
Sales of Government and similar securities – 107
Purchases of securities issued by banks and other corporate bodies (1) (3)
Sales of securities issued by banks and other corporate bodies 59 36

166 656

c Net cash flow from financing
2001 2000

£ million £ million

(Decrease)/increase in bank loans (918) 1,146
Increase/(decrease) in debenture loans 27 (236)
Increase in bonds 1,213 886
Capital element of finance lease repayments (6) 7

316 1,803
Loans repaid to joint ventures – (70)
Other – (46)

316 1,687
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23 Post retirement benefits continued
b Post retirement benefits other than pensions
At 31 March 2001, 2,507 employees (2000 9,352 employees) and 2,110 retired employees (2000 2,361 retired employees) of companies in the
United States of America and Canada were entitled to healthcare benefits after retirement. The schemes are unfunded.

The benefits cost charge and provisions for the liability included in the accounts are determined by a qualified independent actuary.

During the year, the benefits cost charge was £nil million (2000 £1 million); healthcare costs after retirement charged to the provision
amounted to £5 million (2000 £4 million) and the retranslation for exchange movements increased the provision by £9 million
(2000 £1 million). As a result, the provision at 31 March 2001 was £78 million (2000 £74 million).

24 Other information
a Contingent liabilities

Group Company
2001 2000 2001 2000

£ million £ million £ million £ million

At 31 March 25 25 – –

Contingent liabilities relate mainly to the cost of legal proceedings, which in the opinion of the Directors, are not expected to have a materially
adverse effect on the Group.

b Capital expenditure
Group Company

2001 2000 2001 2000
£ million £ million £ million £ million

Commitments contracted at 31 March 93 59 – –

c Operating leases
Group Company

2001 2000 2001 2000
£ million £ million £ million £ million

Charges in the year
Land and buildings 37 30 – –
Other items 16 15 – –

53 45 – –

Amounts payable under operating leases which fall due in the next financial year
Land and buildings, leases expiring

Within one year 11 7 – –
Between two and five years 22 15 – –
After five years 14 9 – –

Other items, leases expiring
Within one year 3 3 – –
Between two and five years 12 12 – –
After five years 7 11 – –

69 57 – –

Non-audit fees worldwide to the Group’s auditors amounted to £6.8 million (2000 £8.1 million) including £4.4 million for professional advice on
acquisitions, disposals and group restructuring.
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22 Acquisitions and disposals continued
Goodwill of £1,274 million comprises £510 million relating to Metapath Software International, Inc., £195 million relating to Mariposa
Technology, Inc., £101 million relating to Splice Transmissao SA, £90 million relating to Systems Management Specialists, Inc., £71 million
relating to Albany Partnership Limited and £307 million for other acquisitions.

b Sales of interests in subsidiaries and associates
2001 2000

£ million £ million

Net assets sold
Tangible fixed assets 23 –
Investments in joint ventures and associates 44 –
Inventory 45 –
Debtors 65 –
Overdrafts (3) –
Creditors and provisions (39) –
Goodwill 7 –

142 –

Accounted for by:
Consideration 182 –
Loan notes 15 –

Profit on disposal 55 –

As part of the consideration received in respect of the disposal of the Woods Air Movement Group, the Group acquired a 42 per cent shareholding
in Global Air Movement Holdings Limited. This is valued at £nil, being the Group’s share of the fair value of the net assets of the company.

23 Post retirement benefits
a Pensions
Pension plan assets are held in trustee-administered funds independent of the Group’s finances. The principal pension scheme, the G.E.C.
1972 Plan (the “Plan”) is open to all permanent UK employees of participating companies. Retirement benefits are primarily of the ‘defined
benefit’ type.

As a result of the separation of MES, the MES employees ceased to participate in the Plan and, on 6 April 2000, were transferred to a new
BAE Systems pension scheme (the BAE Systems 2000 Pension Plan – the “BAE Plan”) providing identical benefits to the Plan. A share of the
Plan’s assets were transferred to the corresponding new BAE Plan, proportional to the share of the total Plan’s liabilities as at 6 April 2000
that were attributable to the MES members, based on actuarial calculations performed as at 6 April 2000.

In accordance with the Transactions Agreement relating to the separation of MES, an initial transfer value for MES members of the Plan
amounting to £2,559 million has been paid. On finalisation of the transfer value as at 6 April 2000, the remaining amount will be transferred
from the Plan.

The actuarial valuation as at 6 April 1999 was undertaken using the ‘projected unit’ method. At the valuation date the members transferring to
the BAE Plan were included in the valuation results. The main financial assumptions for assessing the funding position of the Plan adopted for
the valuation were that the discount rate for pensioner liabilities and non-pensioner liabilities was 5 per cent and 6 per cent per annum
respectively, increases in pensionable earnings would average 5 per cent per annum, that present and future pensions would increase at the
rate of 3 per cent per annum and State pensions by 3 per cent per annum. The discount rate assumed in assessing the long-term employer
contribution rate was 7.25 per cent per annum.

The accumulated assets of the Plan were sufficient to fully finance the past service liabilities including provision for future inflation. The
market value of the assets was £5,048 million at the valuation date prior to the transfer of MES members referred to above. The actuary
advised that, taking into account members’ contributions of 3 per cent and allowing for an average discount rate of 5.75 per cent, the
Company’s contribution rate could be maintained at the current level of 6.6 per cent of pensionable salaries until the next actuarial valuation
due as at 6 April 2002.

The total pension cost charged to the profit and loss account for the Plan for the year ended 31 March 2001 amounted to £22 million
(2000 £26 million). The provision in the balance sheet which resulted from the difference between the pension cost charge and contributions
amounted to £5 million (2000 £23 million) for the Plan following the release of £18 million as the Plan’s liabilities were curtailed. The provision
for unfunded liabilities amounted to £85 million (2000 £80 million) for other plans.
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25 Financial instruments continued
Financial liabilities
After taking into account interest rate swaps and forward currency contracts, the interest rate profile of the Group’s financial liabilities at
31 March 2001 and 31 March 2000 were:

Non-interest
bearing

Non- Fixed rate weighted
Floating Fixed interest Average Weighted average

Total rate rate bearing interest rate period period
31 March 2001 £ million £ million £ million £ million % years years

Sterling 195 147 – 48 – – 9.2
US dollars 2,172 148 2,024 – 7.3 14.9 –
Euro 1,273 593 674 6 6.2 8.5 1.5
Other 91 76 15 – 10.5 0.4 –

Total 3,731 964 2,713 54 7.0 13.2 8.3

Analysed between
Borrowings (note 17) 3,677 964 2,713 –
Long-term trade creditors
and payments in advance 54 – – 54

3,731 964 2,713 54

Maturity profile of financial liabilities
In one year or less, or on demand 1,407
In more than one year, but no more

than two years 42
In more than two years, but no more

than five years 365
In more than five years 1,917

3,731

Non-interest
bearing

Non- Fixed rate weighted
Floating Fixed interest Average Weighted average

Total rate rate bearing interest rate period period
31 March 2000 £ million £ million £ million £ million % years years

Sterling 60 – 1 59 6.0 – 7.7
US dollars 1,560 37 1,523 – 5.9 8.6 –
Euro 1,192 526 665 1 5.5 8.8 4.0
Other 18 14 3 1 6.4 1.0 1.8

Total 2,830 577 2,192 61 5.8 8.7 7.5

Analysed between
Borrowings (note 17) 2,769 577 2,192 –
Long-term trade creditors
and payments in advance 61 – – 61

2,830 577 2,192 61

Maturity profile of financial liabilities
In one year or less, or on demand 1,830
In more than one year, but no more

than two years 19
In more than two years, but no more

than five years 330
In more than five years 651

2,830

Floating rate borrowings and assets bear interest based on relevant national LIBOR equivalents.
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25 Financial instruments
Treasury policy and the Group’s use of financial instruments are dealt with in Group Financial Management on pages 44 and 45. Short-term
debtors and creditors have been excluded from all disclosures below except the currency profile.

a Currency and interest rate risk profile of financial liabilities
Financial assets
After taking into account interest rate swaps and forward currency contracts, the interest rate profile of the Group’s financial assets at
31 March 2001 and 31 March 2000 were:

Non-interest
bearing

Non- Fixed rate weighted
Floating Fixed interest Average Weighted average

Total rate rate bearing interest rate period period
31 March 2001 £ million £ million £ million £ million % years years

Sterling 241 236 4 1 5.0 0.1 3.2
US dollars 77 44 22 11 5.2 1.0 3.6
Euro 127 120 4 3 3.0 1.0 1.5
Other 91 74 6 11 3.3 0.5 3.8

Total 536 474 36 26 4.6 0.8 3.4

Analysed between
Cash at bank and in hand (note 15) 259 245 14 –
Liquid resources (note 15) 251 229 22 –
Long-term debtors and amounts
recoverable on contracts 26 – – 26

536 474 36 26

Non-interest
bearing

Non- Fixed rate weighted
Floating Fixed interest Average Weighted average

Total rate rate bearing interest rate period period
31 March 2000 £ million £ million £ million £ million % years years

Sterling 205 31 174 – 5.9 0.1 –
US dollars 225 42 164 19 5.8 0.2 3.4
Euro 150 121 28 1 2.2 0.1 1.8
Other 65 38 26 1 5.7 0.1 1.5

Total 645 232 392 21 5.6 0.1 3.2

Analysed between
Cash at bank and in hand (note 15) 221 139 82 –
Liquid resources (note 15) 403 93 310 –
Long-term debtors and amounts
recoverable on contracts 21 – – 21

645 232 392 21
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25 Financial instruments continued
c Fair values of financial assets and liabilities
The book values and fair values of the Group’s financial assets and liabilities at 31 March 2001 and 31 March 2000 were:

Book value Fair value
2001 2000 2001 2000

£ million £ million £ million £ million

Short-term financial liabilities and current portion of long-term borrowings (1,407) (1,830) (1,407) (1,830)
Long-term borrowings and long-term financial liabilities (2,324) (1,000) (2,257) (977)
Financial assets 536 645 528 641
Interest rate swaps – – (7) 124
Forward foreign currency contracts – – 6 6
Tax equalisation swaps (25) (41) (13) (27)
Equity swaps (13) (33) (215) (33)

The fair values of the interest rate swaps and tax equalisation swaps have been determined by references available from the markets on
which the instruments are traded. Forward foreign currency contracts and other fair values have been calculated by discounting cash flows at
prevailing interest rates.

d Gains and losses on hedges
The Group enters into forward foreign exchange contracts to eliminate the currency exposure arising on sales and purchases denominated in
foreign currencies as soon as there is a firm contractual commitment. It also uses interest rate swaps to manage its interest rate profile.

An analysis of these unrecognised gains and losses is as follows:
Total net

Gains Losses gains/(losses)
£ million £ million £ million

Unrecognised gains and losses on hedges at 1 April 2000 143 (13) 130
Gains and losses arising in previous years that were recognised in the year 78 (2) 76

Gains and losses arising before 1 April 2000 that were not recognised in the year 65 (11) 54
Gains and losses arising in the year to 31 March 2001 that were not recognised 
in the year (49) (87) (136)

Unrecognised gains and losses on hedges at 31 March 2001 16 (98) (82)

Of which:

Gains and losses expected to be recognised in the year to 31 March 2002 8 (2) 6

Gains and losses expected to be recognised in the year to 31 March 2003 or later 8 (96) (88)

£9 million of the gains and £2 million of the losses unrecognised at 31 March 2000 were expected to have been recognised in the profit and
loss account for the year ended 31 March 2001.

The cumulative aggregate gains and losses which are carried forward in the balance sheet pending their inclusion in the profit and loss
account total £25 million (2000 £41 million), of which £8 million (2000 £10 million) is expected to be included in the profit and loss account in
the next accounting period. Aggregate gains arising in previous years of £16 million were included in the profit and loss account for the year.

26 Post balance sheet events
Since 31 March 2001, Marconi has put in place a 364 day credit facility with a one year term out option for 3 billion.
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25 Financial instruments continued
b Currency profile
At 31 March 2001 and 31 March 2000, after taking into account the effects of currency swaps and forward foreign exchange contracts, the
Group’s currency exposures, excluding borrowings treated as hedges, were:

31 March 2001
Net foreign currency monetary assets/(liabilities)

Sterling US dollars Euro Other Total
Functional currency of Group operation £ million £ million £ million £ million £ million

Sterling – 6 1 12 19
US dollars 1 – 1 (16) (14)
Euro 46 – – 7 53
Other 7 4 4 – 15

Total 54 10 6 3 73

31 March 2000
Net foreign currency monetary assets/(liabilities)

Sterling US dollars Euro Other Total
Functional currency of Group operation £ million £ million £ million £ million £ million

Sterling – 1 8 1 10
US dollars – – – (2) (2)
Euro 52 (8) – 2 46
Other 12 5 – – 17

Total 64 (2) 8 1 71

The Group’s net monetary debt and net assets by currency at 31 March 2001 and 31 March 2000 were:

31 March 2001
Net assets
before net Net Net (liabilities)/

monetary debt monetary debt assets
Functional currency of Group operation £ million £ million £ million

Sterling 989 (3,028) (2,039)
US dollars 6,014 21 6,035
Euro 540 (184) 356
Other 261 24 285

Total 7,804 (3,167) 4,637

31 March 2000
Net assets
before net Net Net (liabilities)/

monetary debt monetary debt assets
Functional currency of Group operation £ million £ million £ million

Sterling 718 (2,361) (1,643)
US dollars 5,347 151 5,498
Euro 423 4 427
Other 303 61 364

Total 6,791 (2,145) 4,646
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27 Statutory consolidated profit and loss account continued
For the year ended 31 March 2000, the profit and loss account above covers the first statutory accounting reference period of Marconi plc
from its date of incorporation on 17 September 1999 to 31 March 2000, as is required by the Companies Act 1985. Supporting note
disclosures for this period are not given as they would not provide users of accounts with material information.

The amounts in respect of directors remuneration required by Companies Act 1985 Schedule 6 are included within the amounts shown in the
Report to Shareholders by the Board on Directors’ Remuneration on pages 38 to 41 which covers remuneration for the 12 months to
31 March 2001 and 31 March 2000. Amounts for the statutory reference period to 31 March 2000 in respect of salaries and other time related
costs can be derived by apportioning the annual amounts.

Notes to the Accounts continued

27 Statutory consolidated profit and loss account
2001 2000

£ million £ million

Turnover
Group 6,653 3,029
Share of joint ventures 289 174

6,942 3,203

Operating profit
Group operating profit

Excluding goodwill amortisation and exceptional items 785 434
Goodwill amortisation (671) (248)
Operating exceptionals (32) (78)

82 108
Share of operating profit of joint ventures

Excluding goodwill amortisation and exceptional items 22 17
Goodwill amortisation (2) (2)
Operating exceptionals – (1)

20 14

102 122

Group and joint venture operating profit before goodwill amortisation and exceptional items 807 451

Share of operating profit of associates 8 3

Operating profit 110 125

Exceptional items, merger/demerger receipts and (costs) 20 737

Exceptional items, gains less losses on disposals of subsidiaries and other fixed assets (38) 4

Income from loans, deposits and investments, less interest payable
Group (154) (59)
Share of joint ventures and associates 1 6

(153) (53)

(Loss)/profit on ordinary activities before taxation
Excluding goodwill amortisation and exceptional items 662 401
Goodwill amortisation and exceptional items (723) 412

(61) 813

Tax (charge)/credit on profit on ordinary activities
Excluding tax on goodwill amortisation and exceptional items (188) (126)
Tax on goodwill amortisation and exceptional items (17) 198

(205) 72

(Loss)/profit on ordinary activities after taxation (266) 885
Equity minority interests (5) (1)

(Loss)/profit on ordinary activities attributable to the shareholders (271) 884
Equity dividends (148) (148)

Retained (loss)/profit for the financial period (419) 736

Basic (loss)/earnings per share (9.8p) 32.5p
Diluted (loss)/earnings per share (9.8p) 32.0p
Earnings per share before goodwill amortisation and exceptional items 17.0p) 10.1p
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Communications Country of Incorporation

Communications Networks and Communications Services
Marconi Communications Ltd Great Britain
Marconi Communications S.p.A Italy
Marconi Communications Inc. USA
FORE Systems, Inc. USA

Mobile Communications
Marconi Mobile S.p.A Italy

Systems

Marconi Commerce Systems Inc. USA
Marconi Medical Systems, Inc. USA
Marconi Data Systems Inc. USA

Capital

Marconi Applied Technologies Ltd Great Britain
Marconi Software Solutions Ltd Great Britain
Ipsaris Ltd (90.0%) Great Britain
General Domestic Appliances Ltd (50.0%) Great Britain

Other

Marconi Corporation plc Great Britain

Other Associated Companies

Global Air Movement Holdings Ltd (42.0%) Great Britain
Plessey Holdings Ltd (50.0%) Great Britain

1 All subsidiaries and associated companies disclosed above are owned by a subsidiary or subsidiaries of the Company. Further statutory
information on the principal associated companies is set out below.

2 The above list of subsidiaries includes those businesses that had a material effect on the consolidated results to 31 March 2001.

Statutory Information on Associated Companies
Proportion Marconi

of shares Group equity
Class of shares Number held % interest %

United Kingdom

General Domestic Appliances Holdings Ltd 50.0
‘A’ shares of £1 1,140,000 –
‘B’ shares of £1 1,140,000 100.0
‘C’ shares of £10, non-voting 2,362,000 100.0
‘D’ shares of £1, non-voting 100,000 –

Global Air Movement Holdings Ltd 42.0
Ordinary shares of £1 100,000 42.0
B-shares of £1 100 42.0

Plessey Holdings Ltd 50.0
‘G’ ordinary shares of £1 265,000,500 100.0
‘S’ ordinary shares of £1 265,000,500 –

2001 2000 1999 1998 1997
£m £m £m £m £m

Turnover
– continuing operations and share of joint ventures 6,942 5,724 4,090 3,768 3,515
– total 6,942 5,724 4,090 4,162 4,554

Operating profit/(loss)
– continuing operations, excluding goodwill 

amortisation and exceptional items (1) 807 750 508 439 369
– total 110 (115) 448 555 391

(Loss)/profit before taxation
– continuing operations, excluding goodwill 

amortisation and exceptional items (1) 662 654 576 513 430
– total (61) 523 976 794 655

(Loss)/earnings per share
– continuing operations, excluding goodwill 

amortisation and exceptional items (1) 17.0p 16.9p 13.0p 11.1p 9.0p
– basic (9.8p) 19.4p 22.4p 17.2p 14.3p

Equity dividends (2) 148 142 348 311 365
Per share 5.35p 5.20p 13.00p 11.43p 13.15p

Retained (loss)/profit(3) (419) 380 259 169 34

Goodwill 5,395 4,397 1,220 485 456
Fixed assets 1,142 758 470 398 578
Investments 591 1,626 1,223 1,024 1,037
Stocks and contracts in progress 1,721 946 616 548 668
Debtors 2,708 2,250 1,432 1,253 1,196
Net monetary (debt)/funds(4) (3,167) (2,145) 624 1,035 862

8,390 7,832 5,585 4,743 4,797
Liabilities (3,753) (3,186) (2,161) (2,026) (1,912)

4,637 4,646 3,424 2,717 2,885

Financed by
Equity shareholders’ interests 4,622 4,630 3,413 2,573 2,771
Minority interests 15 16 11 144 114

4,637 4,646 3,424 2,717 2,885

Notes

1 Continuing operations, as used in the table above, reflects the historical track record of those businesses, both Group and share of joint ventures, which form

part of the Marconi Group as at 31 March 2001. The income received by the Group from its stake in Alstom (formerly GEC Alsthom), which was equity

accounted until 30 September 1998, and those businesses previously disposed have been excluded.

2 The dividends per share for the years ended 31 March 1997 to 31 March 1999 reflect the dividends paid under the GEC distribution policy, which is not

comparable as Marconi only merged with the non-defence businesses of GEC.

3 The interest, tax and management charges included in the retained profit for the years ended 31 March 1997 to 31 March 1999 reflect the overall historic

corporate structure of GEC. These are not necessarily indicative of those which would have been incurred had the MES business been separated prior to

1 April 1996.

4 Net monetary (debt)/funds are as described in note 21 to the accounts.

Statistical Information 1997/2001
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UK Taxation

Income tax on dividends
Dividends are normally paid with a tax credit attaching which, together with the dividend, constitutes an individual shareholder’s income for
tax return purposes. From 6 April 1999 with the abolition of advance corporation tax (ACT) the rate of tax credit is reduced to 10/90ths.
However, as a result of a reduction in the rate of tax on dividend income from 6 April 1999 there should be no increase in the income tax
borne by UK resident individual shareholders in respect of dividend income. Tax credits will in general no longer be repayable to UK resident
individual shareholders whose tax liability is less than the associated tax credit.

Capital gains tax
The market value of GEC ordinary shares at 31 March 1982 depends on the treatment afforded to the capital repayment of 15 pence per
25 pence share made by GEC in November 1982 and the treatment of proceeds received in respect of the Auction or Exercise of Put
Warrants in October 1998.

If the capital repayment in November 1982 has been treated as a part disposal for capital gains purposes, the market value is 163.1 pence
per ordinary share of 5 pence each; where the November 1982 capital repayment has been treated as a reduction of a shareholder’s capital
gains cost, the market value is 160.1 pence per ordinary share of 5 pence each. These market values are adjustable for individuals by the
indexation allowance which is only available for periods up to 5 April 1998.

The resultant market values will need adjustment for the treatment of proceeds received in respect of the Auction of Put Warrants or the
capital element received on Exercise of Put Warrants.

Former GEC shareholders issued with the Securities Package on completion of the merger of Marconi Electronic Systems with British
Aerospace Plc (now known as BAE Systems plc), consisting of Marconi plc ordinary shares, British Aerospace Plc ordinary shares and Capital
Amortising Loan Stock (CALS) will need to allocate the base cost of one GEC ordinary share to each element of the Securities Package as
follows:

Marconi plc Ordinary shares 82.7690871%
British Aerospace plc Ordinary shares 15.8827107%
British Aerospace plc CALS 1.3482022%

Shareholders are also referred to the Chairman’s letter sent out with the interim dividend payment on 4 February 2000.
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Shareholding analysis

Percentage Percentage
Number of of total Number of of issued

Classification of shareholders* holders holders shares capital

Individuals
United Kingdom 110,600 68.03 216,422,521 7.77
Foreign 4,417 2.72 15,995,399 0.57

Institutions
United Kingdom 46,350 28.51 2,544,954,579 91.38
Foreign 1,197 0.74 7,817,397 0.28

162,564 100 2,785,189,896 100

Banks/Nominees 33,710 20.74 2,164,409,053 77.71
Other Companies 12,346 7.60 292,237,974 10.49
Insurance Companies 716 0.44 67,815,654 2.43
Investment Trusts 722 0.44 9,915,132 0.36
Pension Funds 53 0.03 18,394,163 0.66
Individuals 115,017 70.75 232,417,920 8.35

162,564 100 2,785,189,896 100

Shareholding Range*

1 – 100 8,419 5.2 414,829 –
101 – 1,000 77,367 47.6 42,955,568 1.6

1,001 – 5,000 62,890 38.7 139,317,962 5.0
5,001 – 25,000 11,262 6.9 103,015,762 3.7

25,001 – 100,000 1,254 0.8 61,132,874 2.2
100,001 – 500,000 828 0.5 198,230,092 7.1
500,001 – 1,000,000 195 0.1 137,360,770 4.9

1,000,001 – 10,000,000 302 0.2 889,038,963 31.9
10,000,001 and over 47 – 1,213,723,076 43.6

162,564 100 2,785,189,896 100

* as at 31 March 2001

Financial Calendar

17 May 2001 Preliminary Statement published including proposed final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2001.
18 June 2001 Annual Report and Accounts or Summary Financial Statement and letter from the Chairman posted to shareholders. 
20 June 2001 Ordinary shares first quoted “ex-dividend”.
22 June 2001 Record date for the final dividend.
13 July 2001 Final date for receipt of elections for the Dividend Re-Investment Plan.
18 July 2001 Annual General Meeting.
3 August 2001 Payment of final dividend.
8 November 2001 Interim Statement published including interim dividend for the year ending 31 March 2002.
26 November 2001** Interim Statement posted to shareholders.
12 December 2001 Ordinary shares first quoted “ex-dividend”.
14 December 2001 Record date for the interim dividend.
8 February 2002 Payment of interim dividend.
23 May 2002** Preliminary Statement published including proposed final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2002.
17 July 2002** Annual General Meeting.

** provisional dates

Information for Shareholders
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Shareholder Services

The Marconi Registrar
Enquiries concerning shareholdings in Marconi such as a change of
address, dividend payments and share certificates should be
addressed to:

The Marconi Registrar Telephone: +44 (0)870 702 0118
Computershare Services PLC Facsimile: +44 (0)870 703 6116
PO Box 82
The Pavilions
Bridgwater Road
Bristol BS99 7NH

The Dividend Re-Investment Plan
The Company operates a Dividend Re-Investment Plan. Further
details can be obtained from The Marconi Registrar, Computershare
Services PLC.

The Marconi Share Purchase Scheme
The Company has appointed NatWest Stockbrokers Ltd to manage
the Marconi Share Purchase Scheme, a facility open to individual
Marconi shareholders who wish to acquire additional Marconi shares.

Details can be obtained by writing to or telephoning:

The Marconi Share Purchase Scheme
NatWest Stockbrokers Corporate and Employee Services
55 Mansell Street
London 
E1 8AN                                          Telephone: +44 (0)870 600 2050

American Depositary Shares (ADSs)
The Company has appointed The Bank of New York as its Depositary
in respect of its ADS programme. The contact details for The Bank of
New York are as follows:

The Bank of New York Telephone: 1888 269 2377 
101 Barclay Street (US callers - toll free)
New York, N.Y. 10286 +1 (908) 769 9835
USA Facsimile: +1 (212) 815 4023

ADS holders may obtain a copy of the Company’s annual report and
accounts from The Bank of New York.

S h a re price inform a t i o n
The Marconi share and ADS prices are available on the Company’s
website (www.marconi.com), such share and ADS prices quoted
being subject to a 20 minute delay. The share price can also be
obtained in the UK on Ceefax, Teletext and the FT Cityline service,
telephone number 0906 843 3141 (calls charged at 60 pence per
minute).

Individual Savings Account (ISA) and share dealing serv i c e
The Company has appointed Barclays Stockbrokers to manage the
Company’s ISA (limit £7,000 for year ending 5 April 2002) and to
provide shareholders and prospective shareholders with a share
dealing service.

Details can be obtained by writing to or telephoning:

Barclays Stockbrokers Telephone: 0845 601 500 (ISA)
Client Support Department 0845 703 3021
Tay House (Share Dealing Service)
300 Bath Street
Glasgow G2 4LH

Calls are charged at local rates, you can only use these numbers if
you are calling from the UK. For clients security all calls may be
recorded and randomly monitored.
Barclays Stockbrokers is a member of the London Stock Exchange
and regulated by the Securities and Futures Authority.

General enquiries
For enquiries relating to matters not mentioned above, please write to:

The Secretary
Marconi plc
One Bruton Street
London W1J 6AQ

or telephone during normal office hours on +44 (0)20 7493 8484

We b s i t e
Further information about Marconi can be found at
www.marconi.com

Annual General Meeting
The Queen Elizabeth II Conference Centre, Broad Sanctuary,
Westminster, London SW1P 3EE, 12 noon, Wednesday, 18 July 2001.

Unsolicited mail
Marconi, like other companies, is obliged by law to make its share
register available upon request to other organisations provided that
the organisations concerned pay the appropriate statutory fee. If
shareholders wish to restrict the receipt of unsolicited mail they may
like to write to:

The Mailing Preference Service
Freepost 22
London W1E 7EZ

who can help shareholders have their names removed from certain
kinds of lists.
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